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RECEIVED

JUL 13 2016

HEALTH FACILITIES &
SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

~ T NAL

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FACILITY

INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY

Current Facility Name, The Ingalls Memorial Hospital
Address One Ingalis Drive
City Harvey Zip Code 60426 County Cook
Name of current licensed entity for the facility The Ingalls Memorial Hospital
Does the current licensee: own this facility X OR lease this facility (if leased, check if sublease o)
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
Itlinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen. Napoleon Harris, 111
State Senate District Number 15 Mailing address of the State Senator __ 369 E. 147th Street,
Unit H, Harvey, IL 60426
1llinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep. William Davis
State Representative District Number _ 30 Mailing address of the State Representative 1912 W. 174th Street,
East Haze! Crest, IL 60429

OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will
not be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Complction or Project Completion" for a definition of project completion) by the
time of the proposed ownership change? Yes o No X If yes, refer to Sectlon 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by
Project #

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).
Exact Legal Name of Applicant __ The University of Chicago Medical Center

Address 5841 S. Maryland Avenue
City, State & Zip Code Chicago, 1L 60637
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) _ Sole Proprictorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company . Other, specify

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LlCENSEE/OPERAT]NG ENTITY OF THE
FACILITY NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Enmy to be Licensed __The Ingalls Memorial Hospital

Address One Ingalls Drive
City, State & Zip Code Harvey, 1L 60426 ‘
Type of ownership of the current licensed cntity (check one of the following:) __Sole Proprietorship
X ___Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited l.iability Company Other, specify

BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OWN THE "BRICKS
AND MORTAR" (BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT
FROM THE OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY

Exact Legal Name of Entity That Will Own the Site__The Ingalls Memoriall'Hospital

Address One Ingalls Drive
City, State & Zip Code ' Harvey, IL 60426
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership _ Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
e - Page2 -
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FACILITY

INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY

Current Facility Name
Address
City Zip Code County
Name of current licensed entity for the facility .
Does the current licensee: own this facility OR lease this facility (if leased, check if sublease o)

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership . Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

IHlinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen.

State Senate District Number Mailing address of the State Senator

Illinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep.
State Representative District Number Mailing address of the State Representative

OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will
not be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project Completion" for a definition of project completion) by the
time of the proposed ownership change? Yes 0 No a. If yes, refer to Scction 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by
Project #

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).

Exact Legal Name of Applicant The Ingalls Memorial Hospital
Address One Ingalls Drive
City, State & Zip Code Harvey, IL 60426 .
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprictorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/OPERATING ENTITY OF THE
FACILITY NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed

Address

City, State & Zip Code

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental

Limited Liability Company Other, specify

BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OWN THE "BRICKS
AND MORTAR" (BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT
FROM THE OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY )

Exact Legal Namc of Entity That Will Own the Site

Address
City, State & Zip Code :
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership _ Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
---------- : Page2 —
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FACILITY

INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY

Current Facility Name
Address
City Zip Code County
Name of current licensed entity for the facility
Does the current licensee: own this facility OR lease this facility (if leased, check if sublease o)

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify :

Hlinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen,

State Senate District Number Mailing address of the State Senator

linois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep.
State Represcntative District Number Mailing address of the State Representative

OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will

not be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project Completion” for a definition of project completion) by the
time of the proposed ownership change? Yes o No o. If yes, refer to Section 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by

Project # :

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).

Exact Legal Name of Applicant Ingalls Health System
Address One Ingalls Drive
City, State & Zip Code Harvey, 1L 60426
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/OPERATING ENTITY OF THE
FACILITY NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed

Address

City, State & Zip Code

Type of ownership of the current licenscd entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental

Limited Liability Company Other, specify

BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OWN THE "BRICKS
AND MORTAR" (BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT
FROM THE OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY

Exact Legal Name of Entity That Will Own the Site

Address
City, State & Zip Code
Type of owncrship of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership _ Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
Page 2
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10.

11

12,

13.

14.

15.

TRANSACTION TYPE. CHECK THE FOLLOWING THAT APPLY TO THE TRANSACTION:
Purchase resulting in the issuance of a license to an cntity different from current licensee;

o

o  Lease resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

o  Stock transfer resulting in the issuance of a license to a different entity from current licensee;

o  Stock transfer resulting in no change from current licensee;

o  Assignment or transfer of assets resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from the current licensee;

o  Assignment or transfer of assets not resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from the current
licensee;

&  Change in membership or sponsorship of a not-for-profit corporation that is the licensed entity;

o  Change of 50% or more of the voting members of a not-for-profit corporation's board of directors that controls a

health care facility's operations, license, certification or physical plant and assets;
o  Change in the sponsorship or control of the person who is licensed, certified or owns the physical plant and assets

of a governmental health care facility;
o  Sale or transfer of the physical plant and related assets of a health care facility not resulting in a change of current

licensee;
o Any other transaction that results in a person obtaining contro! of a health care facility's operation or physical plant

and assets, and cxplain in "Attachment 3 Narrative Description™

APPLICATION FEE. Submit the application fee in the form of a check or money order for $2,500 payable to the
lllinois Department of Public Health and append as ATTACHMENT #1.

FUNDING. Indicate the type and source of funds which will be used to acquire the facility (e.g., mortgage through
Health Facilities Authority; cash gift from parent company, etc.) and append as ATTACHMENT #2.

ANTICIPATED ACQUISITION PRICE: $__ Not applicable

FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE FACILITY: $_325,700,000
(to determine fair market value, refer to 77 1AC 1130.140)

DATE OF PROPOSED TRANSACTION: __ September 30, 2016

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. Provide a narrative description explaining the transaction, and append it to the
application as’ ATTACHMENT #3.

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT  (co-applicants must also provide this information). Corporations and Limited
Liability Companies must provide a current Certificate of Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State. Limited
Liability Companies and Partnerships must provide the name and address of each partner/ member and specify the

percentage of ownership of each. Append this information to the application as ATTACHMENT #4. -

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. Provide a copy of the complete transaction document(s) including schedules and
exhibits which detail the terms and conditions of the proposed transaction (purchase, lease, stock transfer, etc).
Applicants should note that the document(s) submitted should reflect the applicant's (and co-applicant’s, if applicable)
involvement in the transactian. The document must be signed by both parties and contain language stating that the
transaction is contingent upon approval of the lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board. Append this
document(s) to the application as ATTACHMENT #5.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Co-applicants must also provide this information) Provide a copy of the

applicants latest audited financial statements, and append it to this application as ATTACHMENT #6. If thc applicant is
anewly formed entity and financial statements are not available, please indicate by checking YES____ , and
indicate the date the entity was formed

Page 3
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16. PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual representing the applicant to whom alf correspondence and inquiries
pertaining to this application are to be directed. (Note: other persons representing the applicant not named below will
need written authorization from the applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in
relationship to this application).

Name: Joe Qurth

Address: Arnstein & Lebr LLP, 120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1200
City, State & Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60606

Telephone () Ext. (312) 876-6215

17. ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also authorized to discuss
this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Carla Gazes

Address: 5841 S, Maryland Avenue
City, State & Zip Code: _Chicago, IL 60637
Telephone () Ext. 773-702-6240

18. CERTIFICATION THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. 1 certify that the number of beds within the facility will not change as part of this transaction. I certify that no
adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any
other agency of the State of Illinois. I certify that [ am fully aware that a change in ownership will void any permits for
projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in
77 1AC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change. 1 also certify that the applicant has not
already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement to acquire the facility named in the
application unless the contract contains a clause that the transaction is contingent upon approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer g;i&lm 4 % W7A"

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer __ Sharon O'Keefe

Title of Authorized Officer: President

Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue
City, State & Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60637
Telephone ( ) Date:

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.

Page 4
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16.

17.

18.

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual representing the applicant to whom all correspondence and inquiries
pertaining to this application are to be directed. (Note: other persons representing the applicant not named below will
need written authorization from the applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in

relationship to this application).

Name:

Address:
City, State & Zip Code:
Telephone () Ext.

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also authorized to discuss
this application and act on behalf of the applicant.
Name:
Address:
City, State & Zip Code:
Telephone () Ext.

CERTIFICATION  THE INGALLS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. 1 certify that the number of beds within the facility will not change as part of this transaction. 1 certify that no
adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any
other agency of the State of Illinois. I certify that [ am fully aware that a change in ownership will void any permits for
projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in
77 1AC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change. | also certify that the applicant has not
already acquired the facility named in this §pplication or entered into an agreement to acquire the facility named in the
application unless the contract contains a clduse the transaction is contingent upon approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer
—
Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer #CLI' £, Joh nson

Tite of Auhorized Officer: __Irescdent & CED

Address; MWM’S Dr've

City, State & Zip Code: _ 2 1" U-kg L Goyap
Telephonc@'od A6 -6lo! Date: 679:1: QD/@

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.

Page 4
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16.

17.

18.

" City, State & Zip Code:

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual repfesenting the applicant to whom all correspondence and inquiries
pertaining to this application are to be directed. (Note: other persons representing the applicant not named below will
need written authorization from the applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in

relationship to this application).

Name:
Address:

Telephone () Ext.

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also authorized to discuss
this application and act on behalf of the applicant.
Name:
Address:
City, State & Zip Code:
Telephone () Ext.

CERTIFICATION INGALLS HEALTH SYSTEM

1 certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. 1 certify that the number of beds within the facility will not change as part of this transaction. I certify that no
adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any
other agency of the State of Illinois. I certify that I am fully aware that a change in ownership will void any permits for
projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in

77 IAC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change. I also certify that the applicant has not
plication or entered into an agreement to acquire the facility named in the

already acquired the facility named in this
application unless the contract contains a clguse it the transaction is contingent upon approval by the State Board. ,
Signature of Authorized Officer }&Q‘L‘ — N
Typed or Printed Name of Authorized gﬁicer *u, r T L’—'l ‘bh NSon
Title of Authorized Officer: T>/L2<) { dm;j ‘M&d é c O
Addreés: 2 ) N\ :Lgdls : D)"‘IU-Q)
City, State & Zip Code: ﬁ"t‘h NLL/! ) I &/ QOL—I%
Telephonq(yox) 7[f’ (gID) Date: S-J,Q#’//D'p’b _

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.

Page 4
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Section 7, Application Fee
Atpachment 1

Application Fee

Attached is a check for Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (82,500.00) payable to the Illinois
Department of Public Health for the required application fee.

ATTACHMENT 1

113223487.10
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Section 8, Funding
Attachment 2

Funding Sources

There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as part of the
transaction.

ATTACHMENT 2
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Section 12, Narrative Description
Attachment 3

Narrative Description

University Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) and Ingalls Health System (“IHS”) have entered
into a Member Substitution Agreement (the “Agreement”) subject to approval by the Ilinois
Health Facilities Review Board. Under this Agreement, subject to Review Board and other
regulatory approvals, IHS would agree to affiliate its systems with UCMC (the “Affiliation”).

IHS 1s a not-for-profit, integrated healthcare delivery system that has long served the Chicago
South side by providing a variety of health care services, including one hospital and one
ambulatory surgical treatment center within Illinois.

UCMC is a not-for-profit academic medical center whose operations include one hospital in
Illinois and additional healthcare services.

Under this transaction, UCMC would become the sole corporate member of IHS and IHS would
have representation on UCMC’s Board of Directors. This transaction constitutes a “change of
control” under the Review Board’s regulations. This application is part of a package of two -
applications seeking Review Board approval for Certificate of Exemption (“COEs”) for changes
of ownership resulting from this transaction.

No new corporate entity will be formed as part of this transaction, however, after the closing THS
will change its name to “UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc.” Upon
consummation of this transaction, UCMC will become the sole corporate member of IHS.
Following consummation of the transaction, UCMC’s Board of Directors will consist of up to
fifty (50) members (excluding ex-officio members), with four (4) members to be designated by
THS.

THS, through its subsidiaries, currently operates the following two licensed health care facilities
both of which will experience a change of control as a result of this transaction and require
Review Board approval:

1. Ingalis Memorial Hospital (an acute care hospital owned and operated by The
Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Inc., a direct subsidiary of IHS)

2. Ingalls Same Day Surgery Center (a joint venture owned 90.10% by two THS
subsidiaries and 9.90% by individual physicians)

Neither the licensed entity of the health care facilities listed above, nor the legal entity that owns
the physical plant of such facilities will change as part of the Affiliation.

ATTACHMENT 3
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There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as part of the
Affiliation. The applicants have scheduled a September 30, 2016 closing, subject to obtaining
regulatory approvals.

ATTACHMENT 3

113223487.10
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Section 13 Background of Applicants
Attachment 4

Background of Applicants

1. Ingalls Health System Overview

Ingalls Health System (“IHS”) is a nationally recognized regional health system
consisting of The Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”) and a network of
comprehensive outpatient facilities. IHS is a multi-specialty system, with more than 450
physicians across 30 different medical and surgical specialties.

Ingalls Hospital is located in Harvey, Illinois, thirty minutes south of downtown Chicago
and is a not-for-profit hospital.

IHS includes Ingalls Same Day Surgery Center (“Ingalls ASTC”) in Tinley Park, Illinois,
for which a separate exemption application is being filed concurrently. IHS also includes
a Wellness Center in Flossmoor, Ingalls Center for Outpatient Rehabilitation in South
Holland and Ingalls Home Care & Hospice, which provides skilled nursing, support and
therapy services throughout the South side of Chicago.

2. Univei'sity of Chicago Medical Center Overview

University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC?”) is one of the nation’s leading academic
medical institutions. Located on Chicago’s South side, UCMC is licensed by the Illinois
Department of Public Health to operate under one license the Center for Care and
Discovery, the Bernard Mitchell Hospital, The Chicago Lying—‘In-Hospital, the University
of Chicago Comer Children’s Hospital, and the Duchossois Center for Advanced
Medicine.

3. Organizational Chart and Good Stahding Certificates

An organizational chart showing the current membership and ownership structure and the
post-closing ownership structure of UCMC and IHS is included in Attachment 3. Good
standing certificates for the following entities are also attached:

A. The Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”): Ingalls Hospital is an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation licensed by the Illinois Department of Public

ATTACHMENT 4
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113223487.10

Health (“IDPH”). A copy of Ingalls Hospital’s Illinois Good Standing Certificate
is attached.

" Ingalls Health System (“IHS”): IHS is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and

the parent entity to Ingalls Hospital. A copy of IHS’ Illinois Good Standing
Certificate is attached.

The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”): UCMC is an Illinois
not-for-profit corporation. After the transaction UCMC will become the sole
corporate member of IHS. A copy of UCMC’s Illinois Good Standing Certificate

" is attached.

ATTACHMENT 4
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File Number 1671-114-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

THE INGALLS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 13, 1922, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS

A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 8TH

dayof  JULY  AD. 2016

N A ,
Authentication #: 1619000420 verifiable until 07/08/2017 M

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 5260-578-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

INGALLS HEALTH SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE
LAWS OF THIS STATE ON DECEMBER 22, 1981, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH
ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS
STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION

IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 8TH

day of JULY A.D. 2016

= \ u 2z = ,
Authentication #: 1619000478 verifiable until 07/08/2017 Q-}WO W

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

000017
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File Number 5439-757-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that
THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 01, 1986, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 8TH

day of FEBRUARY A.D. 2016

WY/ A /
N S ’
Authentication #: 1603901866 verifiable until 02/08/2017 M

Authenticate at: hitp://www .cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

000018
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Section 14, Transaction Documents
Attachment 5

Summary of Transaction Documents

1. Names and Background of the Parties

A. The Ingalls Meinorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”)

Ingalls Hospital is located in Harvey, Illinois, thirty minutes south of downtown
~Chicago. Ingalls Hospital is a part of Ingalls Health System (“IHS”).

B. Ingalls Health System (“IHS”)
IHS is the parent entity to Ingalls Hospital.

C. University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”)

University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) is one of the nation’s leading
academic medical institutions. UCMC is licensed by the Illinois Department of
Public Health to operate under a single license the Center for Care and Discovery,
the Bernard Mitchell Hospital, The Chicago Lying-In-Hospital, the University of
Chicago Comer Children’s Hospital, and the Duchossois Center for Advanced
Medicine.

2. Structure of the Transaction

UCMC and IHS contemplate entering into a Member Substitution Agreement (the
“Agreement”). Under this Agreement, subject to Review Board and other regulatory
approvals, IHS would agree to affiliate its systems with UCMC (the “Affiliation”™).

Under this transaction, UCMC would become the sole corporate member of [HS and IHS
would have representation on UCMC’s Board of Directors.

No new corporate entity will be formed as part of this transaction. Upon consummation
of this transaction, UCMC will become the sole corporate member of 1HS. Following
consummation of the transaction, UCMC’s Board of Directors will consist of up to fifty
(50) members (excluding ex-officio members), with four (4) members to be designated
by THS. :

ATTACHMENT §
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IHS, through its subsidiaries, currently operates the following two facilities both of which
will experience a change of control as a result of this transaction and require Review
Board approval:

1. Ingalls Memorial Hospital (an acute care hospital owned and operated by The
Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Inc., a direct subsidiary of IHS)

2. Ingalls Same Day Surgery Center (a joint venture owned in excess of 90% by two
" IHS subsidiaries and less than 10% by individual physicians)

Neither the licensed entity of the health care facilities listed above, nor the legal entity
that owns the physical plant of such facilities will change as part of the Affiliation.

There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as part of the
Affiliation. - The applicants have scheduled a September 30, 2016 closing, subject to
obtaining regulatory approvals.

3. The Person Who Will Be the Licensed Entity After the Transaction

The Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”) will continue to be the licensed
entity.

4. The Ownership/Membership Interest in the Licensed Entity Pre and Post
Transaction

An organizational chart showing the current membership and ownership structure and the
post-closing ownership structure of Ingalls Hospital is included in Attachment 3.

5. Fair Market Value of the Assets Being Transferred

Using ‘the book value accounting method, the fair market value for the operations of IHS,
Ingalls Hospital and Ingalls ASTC is estimated to be Three Hundred Twenty-Five
Million Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($325,700,000).

6. Purchase Price and Other Consideration

There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as part of the
transaction. UCMC will commit to investments in capital facilities and operations at
Ingalls Hospital as part of the Affiliation.

ATTACHMENT 5
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7. Post-Closing Attestation

Within ninety (90) days of after the closing of the proposed transaction, the Applicants
will provide certification to the Review Board that the change in ownership has been
completed in accordance with the terms set forth in this application.
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Section 15, Financial Statements
Attachment 6

Financial Statements

Attached are copies of the most recently audited financial statements for University of Chicago
Medical Center, for the years ending December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.
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The University of Chicago
Medical Center

Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees of
The University of Chicago Medical Center:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of Chicago Medical Center,
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of
operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. ‘An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as weil as evaluating the overali presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The University of Chicago Medical Center at June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results

of its operations and of its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

VPJLLU. MJLJ«MACAVP-LQ Lep
October 29, 2015

Pricewc;terhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, IL 60606
T: (312) 298 2000, F: (312) 298 2001, www.pwc.com/us
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Balance Sheets

June 30, 2015 and 2014
{in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 163,969 $ 79,698
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts for 2015 - $51,737 and 2014 - $41,874 209,736 184,765
Current portion of investments limited to use 5,033 11
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance receivable 20,129 19,305
Current portion of pledges receivable 1,102 2,598
Prepaids, inventory and other current assets 43,148 34,176
Total cumrent assets 443 117 320,553
Investments limited to use, less cument portion 1,013,224 1,021,660
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,232,784 1,199,907
Pledges receivable, less current portion 1,522 1,893
Malpractice self-insurance receivable, less current portion ) 92,571 96,134
Other assets, net 19,350 16,895
Total assets $ 2802568 § 2,657,042
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 127477 $ 115,093
Current portion of long-term debt 11,535 ‘ 10,050
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 197 311
Current portion of estimated third-party payor settlements 98,975 89,805
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 20,129 19,305
Due to University of Chicago 59,437 15,761
Total current liabilities 317,750 250,325
Other liabilities
Worker's compensation seif-insurance liabilities, less current portion 8,174 8,241
Malpractice self-insurance liability, less current portion : 92,571 - 96,134
Ltong-term debt, less current portion 868,008 831,035
Interest rate swap liability 110,447 95,810
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 44 071 33,595
Total liabilities 1,441,021 1,315,140
Net assets
Unrestricted 1,267,336 1,245,856
Temporarily restricted 86,109 87,954
Permanently restricted : 8,102 8,092
Total net assets 1,361,547 1,341,902
Total liabilities and net assets $ 2802568 § 2,657,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

{in thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues
Net patient senice revenue
Prowvision for doubtful accounts

Net patient senice revenue after provision for doubtful accounts
Other operating revenues and net assets released

from restrictions

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Salanies, wages and benefits
Supplies and other

Physician senices from the University of Chicago

Insurance

Interest

Medicaid provider tax
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Total operating income

Nonoperating gains
investment income and unrestricted gifts; net
Dernivative ineffectiveness gain (loss)

Excess of revenues over expenses

Other changes in net assets

Transfers to University of Chicago

Net assets released for capital purchases
Liability for pension benefits

Changes in valuation of derivatives

Other, net

‘Increase in unrestricted net assets

2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015

$ 1493816 $ 1,409,095
52,166 55,169
1,441,650 1,353,926
101,643 93,577
1,543,293 1,447,503
681,909 627,588
400,536 367,633
205,461 204,586
16,774 15,345
35,632 33,354
36,935 46,071
81,902 83,563
1,459,149 1,378,140
84,144 69,363
26,768 101,159
(567) 535
110,365 171,057
(70,501) (72,749)
2,204 2,462
(8,192) 1,337
(12,396) (5,914)

- 36

$ 21480 $ 96,229
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014
" Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 110,365 §$ 171,057
Transfers to University of Chicago ) (70,501) (72,749)
Net assets released for capital purchases 2,204 2,462
Liability for pension benefits (8,192) 1,337
Changes in valuation of derivatives (12,396) (5,914)
Other, net - 36
increase in unrestricted net assets 21,480 96,229
Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions 2,697 4,007
Net assets released from restnctions used for :
operating purposes (5,124) (4,860)
Investment Income 2,786 9,298
Net assets released for capital purchases (2,204) (2,462)
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets (1,845) 5,983
Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions and other . 10 2,000
Increase in net assets 19,645 104,212
Net assets at beginning of year 1,341,902 1,237,690
Net assets at end of year $ 1,361,547 § 1,341,902

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net change in unrealized gains on investments
Transfers to University of Chicago
Restricted contributions and other changes
Realized gains on investments
Net change in valuation of derivatives
Pension and other changes in unrestricted net assets
Loss on disposal of assets
Depreciation and amortization
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from a change in
Patient accounts receivable, net
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to the University of Chicago
Estimated settlements with third-party payors
Self-insurance liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Uses of construction/capitalized interest funds
Purchases of investments
Sales of investments

Net cash used in inwesting activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term obligations
Transfers paid to the University of Chicago, net
Restricted contributions

Net cash-used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015 2014
19645 $ 104,212
37,631 (65,113)
70,501 72,749
(2,697) {4,008)

(58,351) (45,346)
14,637 7,041
8,192 (1,373)
(10) 1,071
81,902 83,564
(24,971) 19,514
(12,678) (1,256)
8,398 (10,582)
43,676 962
15,931 39,859
(67) (1,287)
(4,943) (1,816)
196,796 198,191
(109,524) (100,571)
- 19
(346,607) (422,420)
370,733 308,505
(85,398) (214,467)
74,874 24,020
(36,064) (24,026)
(70,501) (72,749)
4,564 4,225
(27,127) (88,530)
84,271 (84,806)
79,698 164,504
163,969 § 79,698
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC" or the “Medical Center”) is an lllinois not-for-
profit corporation. UCMC operates the Center for Care and Discovery, the Bernard Mitchell
Hospital, the Chicago Lying-In Hospital, the University of Chicago Comer Children's Hospital, the
Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, and various other outpatient clinics and treatment
areas. .

The University of Chicago (the “University”), as the sole corporate member of UCMC, elects
UCMC's Board of Trustees and approves its By-Laws. The UCMC President reports to the
University’s Executive Vice President for-Medical Affairs. The relationship between UCMC and the
University is defined in the Medical Center By-Laws, an Affiliation Agreement, an Operating
Agreement, and several Leases. See Note 3 for agreements and transactions with the University.

UCMC is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes related to these entities has been made.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update 2014-09, "Revenue From Contracts With Customers.” This guidance outlines a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. In August 2015, the FASB issued an amendment to this standard which deferred the
effective date of the new guidance by one year. The guidance is effective for UCMC beginning
July 1, 2019; however early adoption for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 is
permitted. UCMC is evaluating the impact this accounting guidance may have on its financial
statements. .

During 2015, the Medical Center adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2015-07,
Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Iis
Equivalent). This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15,
2016, and UCMC has elected early adoption. ASU 2015-07 removes the requirement to categorize
within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset
value per share practical expedient. See Note 5 for related fair value disclosures.

Use of Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant estimates are made in the areas of patient accounts receivable, accruals for settlements
with third-party payors, malpractice liability, fair value of investments, goodwill, and accrued
compensation and benefits.

Community Benefits

UCMC'’s policy is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to their
ability to pay for such services, including patients transferred from other hospitals under the
provisions of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA). UCMC also
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014
{in thousands of dollars)

accepts patients through the Perinatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their ability
to pay for services.

UCMC developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the “Policy”) under which patients are offered
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sliding scale. The Policy is based both on income as a
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The
Policy also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic
healthcare expenses. Since UCMC does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not
reported as net patient service revenue. The cost of providing care under this Policy, along with
the unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost
to support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014, are reported in Note 4. ‘

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is defined as the price that the Medica! Center would receive upon selling an asset or
pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Medical Center uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Medical
Center. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable
inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservabie inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’'s own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on the best
information available. The three tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels as
follows:

Level 1 — quoted market prices in active markets for identical investments.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable including model-based valuation techniques.

Level 3 — valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable because
they trade infrequently or not at all.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with original
maturities of three months or less, except that such instruments purchased with endowment assets
or funds on deposit with bond trustees are classified as investments. Cash equivalents are
considered Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Inventory
UCMC values inventories at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in first-out method.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{(in thousands of dollars)

Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at estimated fair value. If an investment is
held directly by the Medical Center and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price
of an identical security is used as reported fair value. Reported fair values for shares in mutual
funds are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year.
The Medical Center’s interests in alternative investment funds such as private debt, private equity,
real estate, natural resources, and absolute return are generally reported at the net asset value
(NAV) reported by the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair
value, unless it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different
from NAV. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Medical Center had no plans to sell investments at
amounts different from NAV.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the Medical Center's investments as of June 30, 2015 and
2014 is included in Note 5.

A significant portion of UCMC's investments are part of the University’s Total Return Investment
Pool (TRIP). UCMC accounts for its investments in TRIP based on its share of the underlying
securities and records the investment activity as if UCMC owned the investments directly. The
University does not engage directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of
the University of Chicago has authorized the use of derivative investments to adjust market
exposure within asset class ranges.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the Medical Center’s investments as of June 30, 2015 and
2014 is included in Note 5.

Endowment Funds with Deficits

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the value of the initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (deficit). When
donor endowment deficits exist, they are classified as a reduction of unrestricted net assets. As of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no endowments in a deficit position.

Investments Limited as to Use

Investments limited as to use primarily include assets held by trustees under debt and other
agreements and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees for future capital
improvements and other specific purposes, over which the Board retains contro! and may at their
discretion subsequently use for other purposes.

Derivative Instruments

In August 2006, UCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contemplated
variable rate borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against
interest on the variable rate debt. The fair value of these swap agreements is the estimated
amount that the Medical Center would have to pay or receive to terminate the agreements as of the
consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparly. The swap values are based on the London interbank
Rate (“LIBOR"). The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy. The effective date of the swap was August 2011. In July 2011, UCMC povated the
original swap agreement to divide the originai notional amount in two equal parts between financial
institutions. The fair value of the terminated portion of the hedge on the date of the novation was
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

recorded in net assets in the amount of $35,123 and is being amortized into irterest expense over
the life of the related debt, commencing on February 23, 2013, the date the Center for Care and
Discovery was placed into service. The new agreement is being accounted for as a hedge. The
combined notional amount of the swap is $325,000 and the effective start date was August 2011.
Management determined that the interest rate swaps are effective, and have qualified for hedge
accounting. Management has recognized ineffectiveness of approximately $600 in 2015 and a
recovery of ineffectiveness of approximately $500 in 2014. This movement reflects the spread
between tax exempt interest rates and LIBOR during the period. The effective portion of these
swaps is included in other changes in unrestricted net assets. The interest rate swaps terminate
on February 1, 2044. Cash settlement payments related to the swaps were accumulated in net
assets while the Center for Care and Discovery was under construction, and are being amortized
into depreciation expense over the life of the building. Amortization commenced on February 23,
2013, the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service. Cash settlement
payments after the Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service are recorded in interest
expense,

UCMC is required to provide collateral on one of the interest rate swap agreements when the
liability of that swap exceeds $50,000. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, $5,030 and $0 was held as
collateral, respectively, and recorded in current portion of investments limited to use. If UCMC's
credit rating were to be downgraded one level; collateral would need to be provided under the swap
with JP Morgan when the liability of that swap exceeds $40,000 and under the Wells Fargo swap
when the liability of that swap exceeds $60,000. Upon further downgrade, the collateral
requirements increase.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Donated items are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution. The
carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed if the facts and circumstances suggest
that it may be impaired. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated by use of the
straight-line method at rates intended to depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful
lives, which generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds
during the period of construction of capital assets, net of any interest earned, are capitalized as a
component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Asset Retirement Obligation

UCMC recognizes a liability for the fair value of a legal obligation to perform asset retirement
activities that are conditional on a future event if the amount can be reasonably estimated. Upon
recognition of a liability, the asset retirement cost is recorded as an increase in the carrying value
of the related long-lived asset and then depreciated over the life of the asset. The UCMC asset
retirement obligations arise primarily from regulations that specify how to dispose of asbestos if
facilities are demolished or undergo major renovations or repairs. UCMC'’s obligation to remove
asbestos was estimated using site-specific surveys where available and a per square foot estimate
where surveys were unavailable. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy.

Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give are recognized initially at fair value as private gift revenue in the
period the promise is made by a donor. Fair value of the pledge is estimated based on anticipated
future cash receipts (net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts), discounted using a risk-
adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of the payment plan. These inputs to the fair value
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

estimate are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. In subsequent periods, the discount -
rate is unchanged and the allowance for uncollectible amounts is reassessed and adjusted if
necessary.

Other Assets and Liabilities

Other assets and liabilities, including deferred financing costs, which are amortized over the term of
the related obligations, do not differ materially from their estimated fair value and are considered
Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy

Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets include the historical dollar amounts of gifts that are required by
donors to be permanently retained. Temporarily restricted net assets include gifts, which can be
expended but for which restrictions have not yet been met. Such restrictions include purpose
restrictions where donors have specified the purpose for which the net assets are to be spent, or
time restrictions imposed by donors or implied by the nature of the gift (such as pledges to be paid
in the future) or by interpretations of law. Unrestricted net assets include all the remaining net
assets of UCMC. See Note 15 for further information on the composition of restricted net assets.

Realized gains and losses are classified as changes in unrestricted net assets unless they are
restricted by the donor or law.

Gifts and Grants

Unconditiona! promises to give assets other than cash to UCMC are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions are
substantially met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year recewed are reported as unrestricted
gifts in the accompanying financial statements.

Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
additions to temporarily restricted net assets until the assets are placed into service.

Statement of Operations

All activities of UCMC deemed by management to be ongoing, major and central to the provision of
healthcare services are reported as operating revenues and expenses. Activities deemed to be
nonoperating include certain investment income (including realized gains and losses).

UCMC recognizes changes in accounting estimates related to third-party payor settlements as
more experience is acquired. Adjustments to prior year estimates for these items resulted in an
increase in net patient service revenues of $900 in 2015 and $10,700 in 2014,

In 201 4, UCMC recognized a gain of $2.5 million from the sale of its investment in VHS Acquisition
Subsidiary No. 3, Inc. and received $2.5 million in cash. The investment had been fully reserved at
the time that it was acquired.

The statement of operations includes excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets that are excluded from excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses inciude
transfers to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions (including
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of
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The University of Chicago Medlcal Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

{in thousands of dollars)

UCMC assets), the effective portion of changes in the valuation of the interest rate swap, and
pension benefit liabilities.

Net Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
UCMC maintains agreements with the Social Security Administration under the Medicare Program,
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of lllinois, Inc. (Blue Cross), and the State of lllinois under the Medicaid
Program and various managed care payors that govern payment to UCMC for services rendered to
patients covered by these agreements. The agreements generally provide for per case or per diem
rates or payments based on allowable costs, subject to certain limitations, for inpatient care and
discounted charges or fee schedules for outpatient care.

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue
adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are
considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered, and UCMC estimates are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known
or as years are no longer subject to UCMC audits, reviews and investigations. Contracts, laws and
regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will
change by a material amount in the near term. A portion of the accrual for settlements with third-
party payors has been classified as long-term because UCMC estimates they will not be paid within
one year.

The process for estimating the ultimate collectability of receivables involves significant assumptions
and judgment. UCMC has implemented a standardized approach to this estimation based on the
payor classification and age of outstanding receivables. Account balances are written off against
the allowance when management feels it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. The use
of historical collection experience is an integral part of the estimation of the reserve for doubtful
accounts. Revisions in the reserve for doubtful accounts are recorded as adjustments to the
provision for doubtful accounts.

Hospital Assessment Program/Medicaid Provider Tax

In December 2008, the State of lllinois, after receiving approval by the federal government,
implemented a hospital assessment program. The program assessed hospitals a provider tax
based on occupied bed days and provided increases in hospitals’ Medicaid payments. In 2014, the
federal government also approved the enhanced Medicaid Assessment Program retroactive to
June 10, 2012. The program, including the enhanced assessment program, results in a net
increase of $30,200 in income from operations, which represents $76,300 in additional Medicaid
payments offset by $46,100 in Medicaid provider tax for 2014. For 2015, the assessment program
resulted in a net increase of $28,400 in operating income, which represents $65,400 in additional
Medicaid payments offset by $36,900 in Medicaid provider tax.

Affordable Care Act (ACA)

In March 2010, the federal government passed the Affordable Care Act (ACA) which expanded
Medicaid coverage to millions of fow-income Americans and made improvements to both the
Medicaid and the Children's Health Insurance Program. Beginning in 2014, coverage for newly
eligible adults would be funded by the federal government for three years. UCMC recognized
$16,800 and $0 of revenue in 2015 and 2014, respectively, under this new law. Due to the timing
of actual payments, UCMC recorded a receivable of $5,000 as of June 30, 2015.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015 and 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Subsequent Events
UCMC has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through October 15, 2015, which is that
date the financial statements were issued, and none were identified.

3. Agreements and Transactions with the University

The Affiliation Agreement with the University provides, among other things, that all members of the
medical staff will have academic appointments in the University. The Affiliation Agreement has an
initial term of 40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutual consent or as a
result of a continuing breach of a material obligation therein or in the Operating Agreement. The
Affiliation Agreement automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following
expiration of the initial term, uniess either party provides the other with at Ieast two years’ prior
written notice of its election not to renew.

The Operating Agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University gives
UCMC the right to use and operate certain facilities. The Operating Agreement is coterminous with
the Affiliation Agreement.

The Lease Agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University
certain of the health care facilities and land that UCMC operates and occupies. The Lease
Agreements are coterminous with the Affiliation Agreement.

UCMC purchases various services from the University, including certain employee benefits,
utilities, security, telecommunications and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting
records are maintained by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the
University charged UCMC approximately $29,000 and $31,100, respectively, for utilities, security,
telecommunications, insurance and overhead.

The University’s Division of Biological Sciences (“BSD") provides physician services to UCMC. In
2015 and 2014, UCMC recorded approximately $205,500 and $204,600, respectively, in expense
related to these services.

UCMC’s Board of Trustees adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net
asset transfers to the University for support of academic programs in biology and medicine. All
commitments under this plan are subject to the approval of UCMC'’s Board of Trustees and do not
represent legally binding commitments until that approval. Unpaid portions of commitments
approved by the UCMC Board of Trustees are reflected as current habllmes UCMC recorded net
asset transfers of $71,750 in 2015 and 2014 for this support.

4. Community Benefits

The unreimbursed cost of providing care under the Financial Assistance Policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to
support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended

June 30, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:
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Uncompensated care:
Medicaid sponsored indigent healthcare
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare - Cost Report
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare - Physician Senices

Total uncompensated care

Provision for doubtful accounts
Charnty care

Unreimbursed education and research:
Education
Research
Total unreimbursed education and research

Total community benefits

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014
3 51,834 % 46,896
68,802 66,187
8,476 7,692
128,112 120,775
12,145 13,438
15,425 25,181
156,682 159,394
87,021 87,161
48,000 48,000
135,021 135,161
$ 291,703 § 294,555

The Medical Center determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the
applicable direct and indirect costs, including salaries, wages, and benefits, supplies, and other
operating expenses, based on data from its costing system to determine a cost-to-charge ratio.
The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care charge to calculate the charity care amount

reported above.
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5. Investments Limited as to Use

The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30:

2015
Endowments
Separately
Invested TRIP Other Total 2014
Investments camied at fair value:

Cash Equivalents $ 362 $ 22000 $ 665 $ 23,027 § 27687
Global Public Equities 86,192 150,738 - 236,930 259,065
Private Debt - 31,372 - 31,372 23,055
Private Equity .

U.S. Venture Capital 2,884 40,045 - 42,929 42,828

U.S. Corporate Finance - 36,875 - 36,875 35,858

Intemational 168 42,189 - 42,357 44,725
Real Assets

Real Estate - 50,933 - 50,933 59,020

Natural Resources - 51,676 - 51,676 66,979
Absolute Retum

Equity Oriented - 70,046 - 70,046 55,327

Global Macro/Relative Value - 56,579 - 56,579 46,685

Muilti-Strategy - 58,065 - 58,065 60,708

Credit-Oriented - 34,386 - 34,386 21,035

Protection-Oriented - 14,945 - 14,945 12,287
Fixed Income

U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS 15,605 40,863 - 56,468 127,102

Other Fixed Income 116,557 73,659 - 190,216 122,179
Funds in Trust - - 21,453 21,453 17,131

Total Investments $ 221,768 $ 774371 $ 22,118 $ 1,018,257 $1,021,671

Investments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest, donor
restricted, worker's compensation, self-insurance, and trustee-held funds. Investments are
presented in the financial statements as follows: ’

2015 2014
Current portion of investments limited to use $ 5033 § 11
Investments limited to use, less cumrent portion 1,013,224 1,021,660
Total investments limited to use $ 1,018257 $ 1,021,671

The composition of net investment income is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2015 2014
Interest and dividend income, net $ 12,567 $ 14,638
Realized gains on sales of securities 52,460 27,097
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities (38,239) 59,424

$ 26,788 § 101,159
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Outside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited partnerships. As of June 30, 2015,
UCMC has commitments of $1,700 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments . ,

The overall investment objective of the Medical Center is to invest its assets in a prudent manner
that will achieve a long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating
activities and increase investment value after inflation. The Medical Center diversifies its
investments among various asset classes incorporating multiple strategies and external investment
managers, including the University of Chicago Investment Office. Major investment decisions for
investments held in TRIP and managed by the University are authorized by the University Board of
Trustee's Investment Committee, which oversees the University's investment program in
accordance with established guidelines.

Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and fixed-income investments, with
maturities of less than one year, which are valued based on quoted market prices in active
markets. The majority of these investments are held in U.S. money market accounts. Global public
equity investments consist of separate accounts, commingled funds with liquidity ranging from daily
to monthly, and limited partnerships. Securities held in separate accounts and daily-traded
commingled funds are generally valued based on quoted market prices in active markets.
Commingled funds with monthly liquidity are valued based on independently determined NAV.
Limited partnership interests in equity-oriented funds are valued based upon NAV provided by
external fund managers.

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are in the form of
limited partnership interests, which typically invest in private securities for which there is no readily
determinable market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers
based on a combination of discounted cash flow analysis, industry comparables, and outside
appraisals. Where private equity, real estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded
securities, these securities are generally valued based on market prices. The value of the limited
partnership interests are held at the manager’s reported NAV, unless information becomes
available indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment. The methods used by managers to
assess the NAV of these external investments vary by asset class. The University's investment
Office on behalf of the Medical Center monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of
managers.

The absolute return portfolio is comprised of investments of limited partnership interests in hedge
funds and drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authonty to invest
in various asset classes at their discretion, inciuding the ability to invest long and short. The
majority of the underlying holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying
holdings is held in marketable securities that trade infrequently or in private investments, which are
valued by the manager on the basis of an appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry
comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds that hold illiquid investments designate
them in special side pockets, which are subject to special restrictions on redemption.

Fixed-income investments consist of directly held actively traded treasuries, separately managed
accounts, commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority of which
have maturities greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active
markets.
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Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds, worker's compensation
trust funds, and externally managed endowments.

The Medical Center believes that the reported amount of its investments is a reasonable estimate
of fair value as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation,
these estimated fair values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a
ready market existed. Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2015 and 2014
were as follows:

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable 2015
Markets Inputs Inputs Totail
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Assets
Investments:
Cash Equivalents 23,028 - - 23,028
Global Public Equities 112,814 3,579 - 116,393
Private Debt - - - -
Private Equity
U.S. Venture Capital - - - -
U.S. Comporate Finance - - - -
Intemational - - - -
Real Assets
Real Estate 2,123 - - 2,123
Natural Resources 3,300 - - 3,300
" Absolute Retum
Equity Onented - - - -
Global Macro/Relative Value 10,074 - - 10,074
Multi-Strategy - - - -
Credit-Oriented - - - -
Protection-Oriented - - - -
Fixed Income
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS 56,468 - - 56,468
Other Fixed Income 176,136 - - 176,136
Funds in Trust 21,453 - - 21,453
Investments measured at net asset value - - - 609,282
Total investments at fair value 405,396 3,579 - 1,018,257
Other assets 5,216 - - 5,216
Total assets at fair value $ 410,612 $ 3,579 § - $ 1,023,473
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable 3 - 3 110,447 $ - 110,447
Total liabilities at fair value $ - 3 110,447 § - % 110,447
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Quoted Significant
Pricesin Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable 2014
Markets Inputs Inputs Total
(Level 1) (Levet 2) {Level 3) Fair Value
Assets
Investments:
Cash Equivalents 27,687 - - 27,687
Global Public Equities 149,741 79,272 - 229,013
Private Debt - - - -
Private Equity .
U.S. Venture Capital 249 - - 249
U.S. Comporate Finance ) - - - -
intemational - - - -
Real Assets
Real Estate 1,164 - - 1,164
Natural Resources - - - -
Absolute Retum
Equity Oriented 7,861 13,099 - 20,960
Global Macro/Relative Value 5,554 11,547 - 17,101
Multi-Strategy - 6,666 - 6,666
Credit-Oniented - - - -
Protection-Oriented - 12,288 - 12,288
Fixed Income .
V.S. Treasures, including TIPS 59,014 - - 59,014
Other Fixed Income 122,179 . - - 122,179
Funds in Trust 17,130 - - 17,130
investments measured at net asset value - - - 508,220
Total investments at fair value 390,579 122,872 - 1,021,671
Other assets 3,675 - - 3,675
Total assets at fair value $ 394254 § 122872 $ - $ 1,025,346
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable $ - $ 95810 § - 95,810
Total liabilities at fair value $ - 8 95810 $ - 3 95,810

During 2015 there were no transfers between investment Levels 1 and 2 or between levels 2 and 3.

The interest rate swap arrangement has inputs which can generally be corroborated by market
data and is therefore classified within level 2.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while UCMC believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.
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The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of UCMC's long-lived

partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry
comparables and outside appraisals. Significant increases (decreases) in any inputs used by

investment managers in determining net asset values in isolation would result in a significantly
lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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UCMC has made investments in various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered
into contractual agreements that may limit its ability to initiate redemptions due to notice periods,
lockups and gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset class and type of investment are

provided below:

Redemption Restrictions

Remaining Life Redemption Terms and Terms
Cash N/A Daity None
Global Public Equities:
Index Funds NA Daily None
Daily with notice periods of 1 to |Lock-up provisions ranging from
Separate Accounts N/A 7 years to 1 year
Lock-up provisions ranging from 0
' Daily to triennial with notice to 5 years, some investments
Partnerships N/A en,y ds of 2 10 90 d © hawe a portion of capital held in
peno ays side pockets with no redemptions
permitted
Private Debt:
' . . . Capital held in side pockets with
Partnerships N/A R t tt
p! edemptions not permitted no redemption pemitted
Drawdown partnerships 110 10 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
Private Equity 1to 19 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
Real Estate:
Drawdown partnerships 1to 18 years Redemption not permitted N/A
ity with noti iod of
Separate accounts N/A Daily with notice period of 5 None
days
Natural resources 1to 17 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
Absolute Return: .
Lock-up prowvisions ranging from 0
to 3 years, some investments
hawve a portion of capital in side
. Daily to triennial with notice pockets with no redemptions
Partnerships N/A rods of 1 to 180 days. pemitted -
Drawdown Partnerships 1 to 3 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
Fixed Income:
Daily to monthly with hotice None
Separate Accounts N/A periods of 1 to 30 days
Daily to monthly with notice None
Commingled Funds N/A periods of 1 to 10 days
’ Quarterly with notice periods of |Only one-third capital available in
Partnerships N/A 10 days any 12-month period
Funds Held in Trust: N/A Daily None
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6.

Endowments

UCMC's endowment consists of individual donor restricted endowment funds and board-
designated endowment funds for a vanety of purposes plus the following where the assets have
been designated for endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreements, and other net
assets. The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. The net assets associated with endowment
funds including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

Hlinois is governed by the "Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA).
The Board of Trustees of UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, UCMC classifies as permanently
restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b} the
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-
restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by UCMC in
a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

UCMC has the following donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014 delineated by net asset class:

Unrestricted
Funds Temporarily Permanently 2015
Functioning Restricted Restricted Tota!
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 921,696 $ 74,468 $ 8,082 $ 1,004,246
Investment retum:
Investment income 40,491 907 - 41,398
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized) (13,703) 1,879 - (11,824)
Total investment retum 26,788 2,786 - 29,574
Gifts and other additions 32,000 - 10 32,010
Appropriation of
endowment assets
for expenditure (43,486) (4,095) - (47,581)
Replenishment of '
endowment assets
for capital (21,332) - - (21,332)
Other (1,187) 409 - _ (778)
Endowment net assets,
- end of year $ 914,479 $ 73,568 $ 8,092 $ 996,139
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Unrestricted T
Funds Temporarily Permanently 2014
Functioning Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 707,290 $ 68,634 % 6,082 $ 782,006
Investment retum:
Investment income 37,212 1,207 - 38,419
Net appreciation !
(realized and unrealized) 63,947 8,092 - 72,039
Total investment retum 101,159 9,299 - 110,458
Gifts and other additions 87,500 - 2,000 89,500
Appropriation of
endowment assets
for expenditure (40,272) (3,850) - (44,122)
Replenishment of
endowment assets
for capital 67,215 67,215
Other (1,196) 385 - (811)
Endowment net assets,
end of year $ 921,696 $ 74468 $ 8,082 $ 1,004,246

Description of amounts classified as permanently restricted net assets and temporarily restricted
net assets (Endowments only) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Time- Time-
Restricted Restricted 2015
Perpetual by Donor by Law Total
Restricted for pediatric health care $ 1,855 $ 17,409 $ 19,264
Restricted for adult health care 1,926 53,481 55,407
Restricted for educational and
scientific programs 4,311 2,678 6,989
$ 8092 § - 8 73,568 % 81,660
Time- Time-
Restricted Restricted 2014
Perpetual by Donor by Law Total
Restricted for pediatric health care $ 1,845 % - 8 16,918 % 18,763
Restricted for adult health care 1,925 - 54,780 56,705
Restricted for educational and
scientific programs 4,312 - 2,769 7,081
$ 8,082 $ - 9 74467 $ 82,549
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Investment and Spending Policies

UCMC has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain
the purchasing power of endowment assets. UCMC expects its endowment funds over time, to
provide an average rate of return of approximately 6% annually. To achieve its long-term rate of
return objectives, UCMC relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and
dividends). Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

For endowments invested in TRIP, the Board of Trustees of UCMC has adopted the University’s
method to be used to appropriate endowment funds for expenditure, including following the
University's payout formula. The University utilizes the total return concept in allocating
endowment income. In accordance with the University's total return objective, between 4.5% and
5.5% of a 12-quarter moving average of the fair value of endowment investments, lagged by one
year, is available each year for expenditure in the form of endowment payout. The exact payout
percentage, which is set each year by the Board of Trustees with the objective of a 5% average
payout over time, was 5.5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. If endowment
income received is not sufficient to support the total retumn objective, the balance is provided from
capital gains. [f income received is in excess of the objective, the balance is reinvested in the
endowment.

For endowments invested apart from TRIP, UCMC calculates a payout of 4% annually on a rolling
24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected
long term rate of return on its endowment.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

The components of property, plant and equipment as of June 30 are as follows:

2015 2014
Land and land rights $ 36,008 $ 36,008
Buildings and improwements 1,385,018 1,288,213
Equipment 512,531 515,713
Construction in progress 55,238 58,313
1,988,795 1,898,247
Less accumulated depreciation (756,011) (698,340)
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,232,784 $§ 1,199,907

UCMC'’s net property, plant and equipment cost includes $10,000 representing assets under capital
leases with the University, which are stated at the UCMC's historical cost. The cost of buildings
that are jointly used by the University and UCMC is allocated based on the lease provisions. In
addition, land and land rights includes $16,400 and $17,800 for 2015 and 2014, respectively, which
represents the unamortized portion of initial lease payments made to the University. UCMC
entered into a services agreement in 2013 for the exclusive right to operate certain food service
operations at the Medical Center, which included a capital commitment in the amount of $11,800
for equipment and renovations provided by the contractor. In 2014 UCMC terminated this food
service operation agreement and settled all outstanding balances, including the capital
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commitment. The amount outstanding under this commitment as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 was
$0.

A new parking garage was placed into service in 2015 with a total cost of $79,500; approximately
$47,200 was spent in 2015 related to the structure.

~ Capitalized interest costs in 2015 and 2014 were $300 and $60, respectively.
8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30 consists of the following:

Final fiscal
year maturity interest rate 2015 2014
Fixed rate:
lilinois Health Facilities Authority:
Series 2003 2015 5.0 $ - 3 7,410
llinois Finance Authority:
Series 2009A and B 2027 4.9 148,480 149,330
Serles 2009C 2037 5.4 60,900 85,000
Series 2009D-1 and 2 {synthetically fixed rate) 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Series 2009E-1 and 2 (synthetlcally fixed rate) 2044 3.9 70,000 70,000
Series 2010 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 3.9 92,500 92,500
Series 2011 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 3.9 92,500 92,500
Series 2011C 2042 55 90,000 90,000
Series 2012A 2037 45 68,535 70,325
Series 2015A 2029 5.0 21,895 1]
Unamortized premium 12,016 9,797
Total fxed rate ] 726,826 736,862
Variable rate: ' .
Series 2013A 2020 3.1 75,000 24,706
lllinois Educational Facilities Authority (IEFA) 2038 0.1 77,7117 79,517
Totat variable rate 152,717 104,223
Total notes and bonds payable 879,643 841,085
Less curent portion of fong-term debt (11,535) (10,050)
Long-term portion of debt 3 868,008 3 831,035

The fair value of long-term debt is based on the pricing of fixed-rate bonds of market participants,
including assumptions about the present value of current market interest rates, and loans of
comparable quality and maturity. The fair value of long-term debt would be a Level 2 hierarchy.
The carrying value of long-term debt is below the estimated fair value of the debt by $27,400 and
$37,400 as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively, based on the quoted market prices
for the same or similar issues.

Scheduled annual repayments for the next five years are as follows at June 30:

Year Amount

2016 $ 12,778

2017 13,255

2018 13,868

2019 14,513

2020 15,208
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Under.its various indebtedness agreements, the Medical Center is subject to certain financial
covenants, including maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio, maintaining minimum
levels of days cash on hand, maintaining debt to capitalization at certain levels; limitations on
selling, leasing, or otherwise disposing of Medical Center property; and certain other nonfinancial
covenants. Each of the bond series is collateralized by unrestricted receivables under a Master
Trust Indenture and subject to certain restrictions. The Medical Center was in compliance with its
debt covenants as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.

Recent Financing Activity

In March 2015, the IFA issued $21,895 of Series 2015A Revenue Refunding Bonds, allocated to
the Medical Center for the purpose of refunding a portion of the lllinois Health Facilities Authority
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009C. The Series 2015A Bonds are secured by a Direct Note Obligation,
Series 2015A of the Medical Center issued pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. The
extinguishment of the Series 2009C bonds resulted in a loss of $700K, the majority of which was
recorded to supplies and other expense in 2015.

Letters of Credit

Payment on each of the variable rate demand revenue bonds is also collateralized by a letter of
credit.” The letter of credit that support the Series 2009D bonds expires in June 2017. The letter of
credit that supports the 2009E bonds expires in December 2018. The letters of credit that support
the Series 2010A and Series 2010B bonds expire in November 2020 and November 2018,
respectively, and the letters of credit that support the Series 2011A and Series 2011B bonds expire
in May 2021 and May 2016, respectively. UCMC has received a commitment to renew the Letter
of Credit Reimbursement Agreement for the Series 2011B bonds, and expects to renew or replace
the letter of credit prior to its expiration. The letters of credit are subject to certain restrictions,
which include financial ratio requirements and consent to future indebtedness. The most restrictive
financial ratio is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25:1. UCMC was in compliance with
all applicable debt covenants at June 30, 2015.

Payment on each of the IEFA bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing November 2017.
The letter of credit is subject to certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The
most restrictive financial ratio is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.75:1. UCMC was in
compliance with all applicable debt covenants at June 30, 2015.

Included in UCMC'’s debt is $77,700 of commercial paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variable
rate demand bonds. In the event that UCMC'’s remarketing agents are unable to remarket the
bonds, the trustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments
under the letters of credit are between 1 and 3 years, beginning after a grace period of at least one
year, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the original bond issue. Any
bonds tendered are stili eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently remarketed would be
subject to the original bond repayment schedules.

UCMC paid interest, net of capitalized interest, of approximately $33,600 and $33,500 in 2015 and
2014, respectively.

UCMC has a $40,000 line of credit from a commercial bank. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, no
amount was outstanding under this line.
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9.

10.

Commitments

Leases

UCMC has capital and noncancelable operating leases for certain buildings and equipment. Future
minimum payments required under noncancelable operating and capital leases as of June 30 are
as follows:

Operating Capital
2016 $ 2249 § -
2017 698 -
2018 712 -
2019 727 -
2020 and thereafter 5,678 -
Total minimum lease payments $ 10,064 -
Less - Amount representing interest : -
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ -

The amount of total assets capitalized under these leases at both June 30, 2015 and June 30,
2014 is $2,300 with related accumulated depreciation of $2,300 and $2,000, respectively. Rental
expense was approximately $5,600 and $5,800 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, including a $500 annual rental of a parking garage from the University.

Insurance

UCMC is included under certain of the University’s insurance programs. Since 1977, UCMC, in
conjunction with the University, has maintained a self-insurance program for its medical
malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with commercial excess insurance above the
University’s self-insurance retention, which for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was
$5,000 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims in excess of $5,000 are subject to an
additional self-insurance retention limited to $12,500 per claim and $22,500 in aggregate.

The estimated liability for medical malpractice self-insurance is actuarially determined based upon
estimated claim reserves and various assumptions, and represents the estimated present value of
self-insurance claims that will be settled in the future. It considers anticipated payout patterns as
well as interest to be earned on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value
the self-insurance liability is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated
payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate of the liability are considered Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy.

A com'parison of the estimated liability for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and net
assets for the combined University and UCMC self-insurance program as of June 30, 2015 and
2014, is presented below:
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1.

2015 2014
Actuarial present value of self-insurance liability
for medical malpractice 3 250,444 % 238,552
Total assets available for claims $ 351,828 $ 332,592

If the present-value method were not used, the ultimate liability for medical malpractice self-
insurance claims would be approximately $43,400 higher at June 30, 2015. The interest rate
assumed in determining the present value was 4.25% for 2015 and 2014. The Medical Center has
recorded its pro-rata share of the malpractice self-insurance liability as required under ASU 2010-
24 in the amount of $112,700 and $115,400 at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively, with
an offsetting receivable from the malpractice trust to cover any related claims.

The malpractice self-insurance trust assets consist primarily of funds held in TRIP.

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotiated pro-rata share of the actuarially
determined normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over five years, with no
retroactive adjustments, as provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2016, the Medical
Center expense will be $12,800 related to malpractice insurance.

UCMC designated $16,400 and $17,100 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, as a workers’
compensation self-insurance reserve trust fund. The self-insurance program investments consist
of approximately 60% bonds and 40% marketable equities. The specifically identified claim
requirements and actuarially determined reserve requirements for unreported workers’
compensation claims were $8,200 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. The University also charges
UCMC for its portion of other commercial insurance and self-insurance costs.

Pension Plans

Active Plans

A majority of UCMC'’s personnel participate in the University’s defined benefit and contribution
pension plan. Under the defined benefit portion of this plan, benefits are based on years of service
and the employee’s compensation for the five highest paid consecutive years within the last ten
years of employment. UCMC and the University make annual contributions to this portion of the
plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding on an actuarially recommended basis. UCMC
recognizes its share of net periodic pension cost as expense and any difference in the contribution
amount as a transfer of unrestricted net assets. The adjustment to net assets was an increase of
$1,000 for 2015 and a decrease of $1,000 for 2014. Contributions of $32,500 were made in the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. UCMC expects to make contributions of $32,500 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 that will be entirely expensed as net periodic pension costs.

Under the defined contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan participants make contributions
that accrue to the benefit of the participants at retirement. UCMC's contributions, which are based
on a percentage of each covered employee’s salary, totaled approximately $7,400 and $6,700 for
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

Plan Name EIN Contributions of UCMC

2015 2014
University of Chicago Retirement Income Plan for Employees 36-2177139002 3 - $ 792
University of Chicago Pension Plan for Staff Employees 36-2177139-003 32,500 24,580

$ 32,500 $ 32,500

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status for the University’s defined
benefit plan included in the University’s financial statements as of June 30, are shown below:

2015 2014
Projected benefit obligation $ 954,886 $ 916,791
Fair value of plan assets 695,869 671,793
Deficit of plan assets over benefit obligation $ (259,017) $  (244,998)

The weighted-average assumptions used in the accounting for the plan are shown below:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.5 % 43 %
Expected retum on plan assets 6.5 % 6.5 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 35%
The weighted average asset allocation for the plan is as follows:
2015 2014
Domestic equities 25 % 28 %
Intemnational equity 24 % 16 %
Fixed income 51 % 56 %
100 % 100 %

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers anticipated payout patterns as
well as investment returns on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value
the pension and other postretirement benefit obligation is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with
the duration of anticipated payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level
2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Total benefits and plan expenses paid by the plan were $40,100 and $39,300 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Expected future benefit payments excluding plan expenses are as follows:
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June 30, 2015 and 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Year

2016 74,746
2017 50,099
2018 52,716
2019 . 54,767
2020 57,246
2021-2025 327,528

Certain UCMC personnel participate in a contributory pension plan. Under this plan, UCMC and
plan participants make annual contributions 1o purchase annuities equivalent to retirement benefits
earned. UCMC's pension expense for this plan was $5,200 and $5,000 for the years ended

June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Curtailed and Frozen Plan

In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louis A. Weiss Memorial Hospital Pension Plan
(Employer ldentification Number 36-3488183, Plan Number 003), which covers employees of a
former affiliate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen. All benefit accruals are fully vested.

Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets
include the following:

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Net periodic pension cost
Interest cost $ 2293 % 2,485
Expected retum on plan assets (3,080) (2,794)
Amortization of unrecognized ’
net actuanal loss 617 675
Net periodic pension cost (170) 366
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in unrestricted net assets
Liability for pension benefits (8,192) 1,337
Total recognized in net periedic pension cost and
unrestricted net assets $ 8,022 $ 971)

The following tables set forth additional required pension disclosure information for this plan:
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June 30, 2015 and 2014

{in thousands of dollars)

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 56,410 $ 54,090
Interest cost 2,293 2,485
Net actuarial loss {gain} 5,382 3,237
Benefits paid (3,767) (3,402)
60,318 56,410
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 53,151 48,360
Actual retum on plan assets (347) 6,693
Employer contribution 3,000 1,500
Benefits paid (3,767} (3,402)
52,037 53,151
Funded status at end of year $ (8,281) $ (3,259)

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet are included in noncurrent liabilities.

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for
the net periodic pension cost were as follows:

2015 2014
Discount rate 43 % 4.2 %
Expected retum on plan assets 6.0% 6.0 %
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
Weighted average asset allocations for plan assets are as follows:
2015 2014

Cash 3% 1%
Fixed income 58 56
Domestic equities 29 29
Intemational equities . 10 14

100 % 100 %

All plan assets are valued using level 1 inputs. The target asset allocation is 40% equities and
60% fixed income. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical investment returmns
for similar investment portfolios. !

UCMC expects to make contributions of $1,500 to the plan in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.
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{in thousands of dollars)

12,

13.

Expected future benefit payments are:

Fiscal Year

2016 $ 3,758
2017 3,767
2018 3,780
2019 3,798
2020 3,863
2021-2025 19,358

Concentration of Credit Risk

As a hospital, UCMC is potentiaily subject to concentration of credit risk from patient accounts
receivable and certain investments. Investments, which include government and agency
securities, stocks, corporate bonds, real assets, absolute return, and private equities, are not
concentrated in any corporation or industry or with any single counter-party. UCMC receives a
significant portion of its payments for services rendered from a limited number of government and
commercial third-party payors, including Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross. Medicaid
approximated 19% and 17% of the Medical Center's net revenue for 2015 and 2014, respeclively.
Medicaid represented 26% and 21% of UCMC’s net accounts receivable at June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. Management does not anticipate any collection risk related to the Medicaid
accounts receivable at June 30, 2013. UCMC has not historically incurred any significant credit
losses outside the normal course of business. :

Pledges

Pledges receivable at June 30 are shown below:

2015 2014

Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:

Less than one year $ 1,102  $ 2,420

One year to five years 1,522 2,142

More than five years . -

2,624 4,562
Less unamortized discount (discount rate 5.5%) - (71)
Total $ 2624 3 4,491
30
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(in thousands of dollars)

14. Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes as of June 30:

2015 2014
Pediatric health care $ 19414 $ 19,541
Adult health care 55,728 56,505
Educational and scientific programs . 5,059 4,774
Capital and other purposes 5,908 7,134
Total $ 86,109 $ 87,954
Income from permanently restricted net assets is restricted for:
2015 2014
Pediatric health care $ 1,855 § 1,855
Adult health care 1,935 1,925
Educational and scientific programs 4,312 4,312
Total $ 8,102 $ 8,092

15. Functional Expenses

Total operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended Jurne 30:

. 2015 . 2014
Health care senices $ 1,359,252 $ 1,285,218
Genera!l and administrative 99,897 92,022

Total $ 1,459,149 $ 1,378,140

16. Contingencies

UCMC is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have risen in the normal course of
business. In addition, UCMC is subject to reviews by various federal and state government
agencies to assure compliance with applicable laws, some of which are subject to different
interpretations. While the outcome of these suits cannot be determined at this time, management,
based on advice from legal counsel, believes that any loss which may arise from these actions will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of UCMC.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees of
The University of Chicago Medical Center:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of Chicago Medical Center,
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of operations,
of changes in net assets, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al) material respects, the
financial position of The University of Chicago Medical Center at June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results

of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Pivwtidsunlopens LP

October 10, 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, 1L 60606
T: (312) 298 2000, F: (312} 298 2001, www.pwe.com/us
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The Unlversity of Chicago Medical Center
Balance Sheets .

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(in.thousands of dollars)

2013 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 164,504 $ 74,348
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts for 2013 - $29,612 and 2012 - $30,796 204,279 209,006
Current portion of investments limited to use 1 27,033
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance receivable 22,502 17,629
Current portion of pledges receivable 2,243 4,799
‘Other current assets 35,176 23,627
Total current assets 428,715 356,442
Investments limited to use, less current portion 797,305 897,405
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,189,623 1,066,494
Pledges receivable, less current portion 2,465 5,634
Malpractice self-insurance receivable, less current portion 98,821 100,524
Other assets, net 15,722 27,349
Total assets $ 2532651 § 2,453,848
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
.Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 131,206 $ 117,678
Current portion of long-term debt 10,385 11,290
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 2,033 688
Current portlon of estimated third-party payor settlements 51,836 27,379
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 22,502 17,629
Due to University of Chicago 14,792 15,593
Total current liabilities 232,761 190,257
Other liabilities
Worker's compensation self-insurance liabilities, fess current portion 9,528 8,216
Malpractice self-insurance liability, less current portion 98,821 100,524
Long-term debt, less current portion 820,341 833,255
.Interest rate swap liability 88,769 135,872
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 44,741 56,370
Total liabilities 1,294,961 1,324,454
Net assets
Unrestricted 1,149,627 1,027,917
Temporarily restricted 81,971 96,345
Permanently restricted 6,092 6,092
Total net assets 1,237,690 1,129,354
Total liabilities and net assets $ 2532651 $ 2453848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues

Net patient senice revenue

Provsion for doubtful accounts

Net patient senice revenue after provision for doubtful accounts
Other operating revenues and net assets released

from restrictions

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits

Supplies and other

Physician senices from the University of Chicago
[nsurance

Interest

Medicaid provider tax

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Total operating income

Ndnoperaﬂng gains
Investment income and unrestricted gifts, net
Derivative ineffectiveness gain (loss)

Excess of revenues over expenses

Other changes In net assets

Transfers to University of Chicago, net
Net assets released for capital purchases
Liabllity for pension benefits

Changes in valuation of derivatives

Other, net

Increase (decrease) in unirestricted net assets

2013 2012

$ 1,303,787 § 1,267,104
47,812 45,133
1,255,975 1,221,971
81,184 67,914
1,337,159 1,289,885
595,968 532,949
335,358 324,844
191,862 185,026
18,382 20,902
19,883 12,789
26,691 26,691
70,466 67,522
1,258,610 1,170,723
78,549 119,162
59,788 24,857
2,993 (3.679)
141,330 140,340
(74,544) (90,396)
14,277 225
3,878 {2.659)
36,713 (85.079)
56 562
$ 121,710 § (37,007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
(in thousands of doflars)

2013 2012
Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 141,330 § 140,340
Transfers to University of Chicago : (74,544) (90,396)
Net assets released for capital purchases 14,277 225
Liability for pension benefits 3,878 (2,659)
Changes in valuation of denvatives 36,713 (85,079)
Other, net 56 562
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 121,710 (37,007)
Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions 3,137 3,345
Net assets released from restrictions used for .
operating purposes (4.621) (4,839)
Investment income 4,604 2,825
Net assets released for capital purchases (14,277) (225)
Other ) {2,217) -
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets (13,374) 1,406
Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions and other - (20)
Increase (decrease) in net assets 108,336 (35,621)
Net assets at beginning of year 1,129,354 1,164,975
Net assets at end of year $ 1237690 § 1,129,354

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4

000061 ATTACHMENT 6




The University of Chicago Medical Center
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(in thousands of dollars) )

Cash tlows from operating actlvitles
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets lo net cash
provided by operating activities
Net change in unrealized gains on Investments
Transfers to University of Chicago
Restricted contributions and other changes
Realized gains on investments
Net change in valuation of derivatives
Pension and other changes In unrestricted net assets
Loss on disposal of assets
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Depreciation and amortization
increase (decrease) in cash resuiting from a change in
Patient accounts receivable, net
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
- Due to the University of Chicago
Estimated settlements with third-party payors
Self-insurance liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided from operating aclivities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Decrease in construction/capitalized interest funds
Acquisition of business purchased
Purchases of investments
Sales of investments

Net cash used In investing activities

Cash flows from financlng activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term obligations
Transfers paid to the University of Chicago, net
Restricted contributions

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease}) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2013 2012
$ 108336 §  (35621)
(4,108) 13,425
74,544 90,396
(921) (3,344)
(63,284) (41,941)
(47,103) 77,808
(3,934) 2,566
035 388
- 2,891
70,329 67,522
4,727 (69,641)
26,429 (7.369)
11,545 12,072
(794) 2,658
24,504 (8.622)
1,312 20
11,061 (6,758)
216,578 96,450
(209,359) (240,737)
14,730 125,620
- (2,607)
(221,928) (146,314)
371,690 186,875
{44,867) (77.,163)
686 80,945
(14,343) (90,631)
(74,544) (90,396)
6,646 6,936
(61,555) {93,146)
90,156 (73,859)
74,348 148,207
§ 164504 $ 74346
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

1.,

Organization and Basis of Presentation

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC” or the "Medical Center”) is an llinois not-for-
profit corporation. UCMC operates the Center for Care and Discovery, the Bernard Mitchell
Hospital, the Chicago Lying-In Hospital, the University of Chicago Comer Children’s Hospital, the
Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, and varlous other outpatient clinics and treatment
areas.

The University of Chicago (the “University"), as the sole corporate member of UCMC, elects
UCMC’s Board of Trustees and approves its By-Laws. The UCMC President reports to the
University's Executive Vice President for Medical Affairs. The relationship between UCMC and the
University is defined in the Medical Center By-Laws, an Affiliation Agreement, an Operating
Agreement, and several Leases. See Note 3 for agreements and transactions with the University.

UCMC Is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)3 of the Internaf Revenue Code.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes related to these entities has been made.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New Accounting Pronouncements

During 2012, the Medical Center adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2011-07,
Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenus, Provision of Bad Debts, and the
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities (“ASU 2011-07"). ASU 2011-07
requires health care entities to change the presentation of the statements of operations by
reclassifying the provision for doubtful accounts from an operating expense 1o a deduction from
patient service revenues.

During 2013, the Medical Center adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2011-04,
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements In U.S.
GAAP and IFRS (“"ASU 2011-04"), ASU 2011-04 requires entities to provide additional disclosures
related to fair value measurements of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. See Note 5 for related fair value disclosures.

Use of Estimates ,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabllities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting perlod. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant estimates are made in the areas of patient accounts receivable, accruals for settlements
with third-party payors, malpractice liability, fair value of investments, goodwill, intangibles, and
accrued compensation and benefits.

Community Benefits :

UCMC's policy is 1o treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to their
ability to pay for such services, including patients transferred from other hospitals under the
provisions of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA). UCMC also
accepts patients through the Pennatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their abllity
to pay for services.
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

UCMC developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the “Policy”) under which patients are offered
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sfiding scale. The policy is based both on income as a
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The
policy also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic
healthcare expenses. Since UCMC does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not
reported as net patient service revenue. The cost of providing care under this policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unrelmbursed cost to
support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012, are reported in Note 4.

Fair Value of Financlal Instruments
Fair value is defined as the price that the Medical Center would receive upon selling an asset or
pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Medical Center uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hlerarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtalned from sources independent of the Medical
Center. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset, including assumptions about risk. Inpuls may be observable or unobservabie. Observable
.inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on the best
information available. The three tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized In the three broad levels as
follows:

Leve! 1 — quoted market prices in active markets for identical investments.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable including model-based valuation techniques.

Level 3 - valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable because
they trade infrequently or not at ail.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with original
maturities of three months or less, except that such instruments purchased with endowment assets
or funds on deposlt with bond trustees are classified as investments. Cash equivalents are
considered Leve! 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Inventory
UCMC values inventories at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in first-out method.

Investments

Investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at estimated fair value. If an
investment is held directly by the Medical Center and an active market with quoted prices exists,
the market price of an identical security Is used as reported fair value. Reported fair values for
shares in mutual funds are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day
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The University of Chicago Medical Center
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June 30, 2013 and 2012
{in thousands of dollars)

of the fiscal year. The Medical Center’s interests in alternative investment funds such as private
debt, private equity, real estate, natural resources, and absolute return are generally reported at
the net asset value (NAV) reported by the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to
estimate the fair value, unless it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an
amount different from NAV. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Medical Center had no plans to sell
investments at amounts different from NAV,

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the Medical Center's investments as of June 30, 2013 and
2012 is included In Note 5.

A significant portion of UCMC's investments are part of the University’s Total Return Investment
Pool (TRIP). UCMC accounts for its investments in TRIP based on its share of the underlying
securities and records the investment activity as if UCMC owned the investments directly. The
University does not engage directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of
the University of Chicago has authorized the use of derivative investments to adjust market
exposure within asset class ranges.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the Medical Center’s investments as of June 30, 2013 and
2012 is included in Note 5.

Endowment Funds with Deficits

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the value of the initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (deficit). When
donor endowment deficits exist, they are classified as a reduction of unrestricled net assets. As of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, there were no endowments in a deficit position.

Investments Limited as to Use

Investments limited as to use primarily include assets held by trustees under debt and other
agreements and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees for future capital
improvements and other specific purposes, over which the Board retains control and may at their
discretion subsequently use for other purposes.

Derivative Instruments

In August 2006, tUCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contempiated
variable rate borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against
interest on the variable rate debt. The fair value of these swap agreements is the estimated
amount that the Medical Center would have to pay or receive to terminate the agreements as of the
consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparty. The swap values are based on the London Interbank
Rate (“LIBOR"). The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Leve! 2 in the fair value
hierarchy. The effective date of the swap was August 2011. In July 2011, UCMC novated the
original swap agreement to divide the original notional amount in two equal parts between financial
institutions. The fair value of the terminated portion of the hedge on the date of the novation was
recorded in net assets in the amount of $35,123 and will be amortized into interest expense over
the life of the related debt, commencing on the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed
into service. The new agreement is being accounted for as a hedge. The combined notional
amount of the swap is $325,000 and the effective start date was August 2011. Management
determined that the interest rate swaps are effective, and have qualified for hedge accounting.
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The University of Chicago Medicai Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Management has recognized a net recovery (loss) of ineffectiveness of approximately $3,000 and
$(3,700) in 2013 and 2012. This movement reflects the spread between tax exempt inferest rates
and LIBOR during the period. The effective portion of these swaps are Included In other changes
in unrestricted net assets. The interest rate swaps terminate on February 1, 2044, Cash
setifement payments refated to the swsps for 2013 and 2012 were $7,900 and $10,900,
respectively. These payments were accumulaled in net assets while the Center for Care and
Discovery was under construction, and will be amortized into depreciation expense over the life of
the building, commencing on the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service.

UCMC is required to provide collateral on one of the interest rate swap agreements when the
liability of that swap exceeds $50,000. At June 30, 2013 and 2012 approximatsly $0 and $26,400,
respectively, was held as collateral and classified as current portion of investments limited to use.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreclation and
amortization. Donated items are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution. The
carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed if the facts and circumstances suggest
that it may be impaired. Depreciation of property, piant and equipment is calculated by use of the
straight-line method at rates intended o depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful
lives, which generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds
during the period of construction of capital assets, net of any interest earned, are capitalized as a
component of the cost of acquiring those assets. During 2013, UCMC evaluated the remaining
useful lives of the buildings based on their condition by performing detailed assessments of the
facilities and modifying estimated useful lives where appropriate to properly reflect the remaining
usefu! life of the facility. Based on these changes, depreciation expense recorded was
approximately $5,800 less in 2013 than if the estimated usefu! lives were not modified.

Asset Retirement Obligation

UCMC recognizes a liability for the fair value of a lega! obligation to perform asset retirement
activities that are conditional on a future event if the amount can be reasonably estimated. Upon
recognition of a liability, the asset retirement cost is recorded as an increase In the carrying value
of the related long-lived asset and then depreciated over the life of the asset. The UCMC asset
retirement obligations arise primarily from regulations that specify how to dispose of asbestos if
facilities are demolished or undergo major renovations or repairs. UCMC's obligation to remove
asbestos was estimated using site-specific surveys where available and a per square foot estimate
where surveys were unavailable. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Levei 3 in
the fair value hierarchy. -

Pledges Recelvable

Unconditional promises to give are recognized initially at fair value as private gift revenue in the
penod the promise is made by a donor. Fair value of the pledge is estimated based on anticipated
future cash receipts (net of an allowance for uncollectibie amounts), discounted using a risk~
adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of the payment plan. These inputs to the fair value
estimate are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. in subsequent penods, the discount
rate is unchanged and the allowance for uncollectible amounts is reassessed and adjusted if

necessary.
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Other Assets and Liabilitles

Other assets and liabilities, including deferred financing costs, which are amortized over the term of
the related obligations, do not differ materially from their estimated fair value and are considered
Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy

Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets include the historical dollar amounits of gifts that are required by
donors to be permanently retained. Temporarily restricted net assets include gifts, which can be
expended but for which restrictions have not yet been met. Such restrictions include purpose
restrictions where donors have specified the purpose for which the net assets are to be spent, or
time restrictions imposed by donors or implied by the nature of the gift (such as pledges to be paid
in the future) or by interpretations of law. Unrestricted net assets include all the remaining net
assets of UCMC. See Note 15 for further information on the composition of restricted net assets.

Realized gains and losses are classified as changes in unrestricted net assets unless they are
restricted by the donor or law.

Gifts and Grants

Unconditional promises to give assets other than cash to UCMC are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions are
subsiantially met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are recelved with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year received are reported as unresiricted
gifts in the accompanying financial statements.

Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
additions to temporarily restricted net assets until the assets are placed into service.

Statement of Operations

All activities of UCMC deemed by management to be ongofng, major and central to the provision of
healthcare services are reported as operating revenues and expenses. Activities deemed fo be
nonoperating include certain investment income (including realized gains and losses).

UCMC recognizes changes in accounting estimates related to third-party payor settlements as
more experience is acquired. Adjustments to prior year estimates for these items resulted in an
increase in net patient service revenues of $3,700 in 2013 and $6,000 in 2012.

in 2013, UCMC recognized a gain of $2,400 related to the unwinding of the Weiss Liquidation Trust
and recelved $16,000 in cash from the liguidation. In 2012, UCMC recognized a gain of $5,500 as
a result of a favorable settlement with Medicare reiating to the rural floor budget neutrality
adjustment for fiscal years 1999 through 2011, UCMC recognized a gain of $21,000 in 2012
reiating to the flow through of the 1996 IME and GME FTE caps for years 2006 through 2011.

The statement of operations includes excess {(deficit) of revenues over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets that are excluded from excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses include
‘ransfers to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions {including
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of
UCMC assets), the effective portion of changes in the valuation of the inerest rate swap, and
pension benefit liabllities.

10
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Net Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Recelvable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
UCMC maintains agreements with the Social Security Administration under the Medicare Program,
Biue Cross and Blue Shield of illinois, Inc. (Blue Cross), and the State of [llinois under the Medicaid
Program and various managed care payors that govem payment to UCMC for services rendered to
patients covered by these agreements. The agreements generally provide for per case or per diem
rates or payments based on aliowable costs, subject to certain limitations, for inpatient care and
discounted charges or fee schedules for outpatient care.

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue
adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are
considered In the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered, and UCMC estimates are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known
or as years are no longer subject to UCMC audits, reviews and investigations., Contracts, laws and
regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross are complex and subject to
interpretation. As aresult, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will
change by a material amount in the near term. A portion of the accrua! for setttements with third-
parly payors has been classifled as long-term because UCMC estimates they will not be paid within
one year.

The process for estimating the ultimate collectability of receivables involves significant assumptions
and judgment. UCMC has implemented a standardized approach to this estimation based on the
payor classification and age of outstanding receivables. Account balances are written off against
the allowance when management feels it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. The use
of historical collection experience is an integral part of the estimation of the reserve for doubtful
accounis. Revisions in the reserve for doubtful accounts are recorded as adjustments to the

provision for doubtful accounts.

Hospital Assessment Program/Med|caid Provider Tax

In December 2008, the State of Illinois, after receiving approval by the federal govemment,
implemented a hospital assessment program. The program assessed hospitals a provider tax
based on occupied bed days and provided increases in hospitals' Medicaid payments. The
program results in a net increase of $28,300 in income from operations, which represents $55,000
in additional Medicaid payments offset by $26,700 in Medicaid provider tax for 2013. For 2012, the
assessment program resulted in a net increase of $30,300 in operating income, which represents
$57,000 in additional Medicaid payments offset by $26,700 in Medicaid provider tax.

Subsequent Events
UCMC has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through October 10, 2013, which is that
date the financial statements were issued.

Agreements and Transactions with the Unlversity

The Affiliation Agreement with the University provides, among other things, that all members of the
medical staff will have academic appointments in the University. The Affiliation Agreement has an
initial term of 40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutual consent or as a
result of a continuing breach of a material obligation therein or in the Operating Agreement. The
Affiliation Agreement automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following
expiration of the initia! term, unless either party provides the other with at least two years' prior
written notice of its election not to renew.

11
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The Operating Agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University gives
UCMC the right to use and operate certain facilities. The Operating Agreement Is coterminous with
the Afiiliation Agreement.

The Lease Agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University
certain of the health care facllities and land that UCMC operates and occupies. The Lease
Agreements are coterminous with the Affiliation Agreement.

UCMC purchases various services from the University, including certain employee benefits,
utilities, security, telecommunicatlons and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting
records are maintained by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the
University charged UCMC approximately $25,200 and $22,500, respectively, for utilities, security,
telecommunications, insurance and overhead.

The University's Division of Blological Sciences (“BSD") provides physician services to UCMC. In
2013 and 2012, UCMC recorded approximately $192,000 and $185,000, respectively, in expense
related to these services.

UCMC’s Board of Trustees adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net
asset transfers to the University for support of academic programs in biology and medicine. All
commitments under this plan are subject to the approval of UCMC's Board of Trustees and do not
represent legally binding commitments until that approval. Unpaid portions of commitments
approved by the UCMC Board of Trustees are reflected as current liabilities. UCMC recorded net
asset transfers of $71,750 in 2013 and $63,000 in 2012 for this support.

4. Community Benefits

The unreimbursed cost of providing care under the Financial Assistance Policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to
support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended

June 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012

Uncompensated care: .
Medicaid sponsored indigent healthcare $ 49623 % 40,223
Medicare sponsored indigent heaithcare - Cost Reponl 45,685 38,520
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare - Physician Services 16,580 11,431
Total uncompensated care 111,888 80,174
Provision for doubtful accounts 12,270 11,995
Charity care 25,676 20,310
149,834 122,479

Unreimbursed education and research:
Education : 86,157 81,735
Research 48,000 48,000
Total unreimbursed education and research 134,157 129,735
Total communilty benefits $ 283,991 $ 252,214
12
ATTACHMENT 6

000069




The University of Chicago Medical Center
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(In thousands of dolifars)

The Medical Center determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the
applicable direct and indirect costs, including salaries, wages, and benefits, supplies, and other
operating expenses, based on data from its costing system to determine a cost-to-charge ratio.
The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care charge to calculate the charity care amount
reported above.

5. Investments Limited as (o Use

The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30:

2013
Endowments
Separately
Invested TRIP Other Total 2012
Investments camied at fair value:

Cash Equivalents $§ 19024 s 13250 % 505 $ 32779 § 15423
Global Public Equities 79,915 95,132 . 175,047 235,444
Private Debt - 21,328 - 21,328 22,848
Private Equity -

U.S. Venture Capital 4,187 28,667 - 32,854 33,918

U.S. Corporate Finance - 32,022 - 32,022 33,196

Intemational 353 37,767 - 38,120 40,233
Real Assels

Real Estate - 56,978 - 56,978 57,296

Natural Resources - 58,786 . 58,788 59,953
Absolute Retum )

Equity Ornented - 36,155 - 36,155 28,983

Global Macro/Relative Value - 35,143 - 35,143 40,235

Multi-Strategy - 50,457 - 50,457 - 50,350

Credit-Oriented - 16,376 - 16,376 11,214

Volatility-Oriented - 11,227 - 11,227 9,975
Fixed Income

U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS 66,151 38,718 - 104,869 149,665

Other Fixed Income 4,162 76,208 - 80,371 81,482
Funds in Trust - - 14,804 14,804 54,223

Tota! Investments $ 173,792 § 608215 § 15309 § 797316 § 524,438

investments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest, donor
restricted, worker's compensation, self-insurance, and trustee-held funds. investments are
presented in the financial statements as follows:

2013 2012
Current portion of investments limited to use $ 11 $ 27,033
Investments limited to use, less current portion 797,305 897,405
Total investments limited to use $ 797,316 § 924,438
13
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The composition of net investment income is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income; net $ 13311 § 14,831
Realized gains on sales of securities 45,738 23,970
Unrealized gains {losses) on securities 738 (13,944)

$ 59,788 § 24,857

Outside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited partnerships. As of June 30, 2013,
UCMC has commitments of $1,711 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships.

Falr Value of Financlal Instruments

The overall invesiment objective of the Medical Center is to invest its assets in a prudent manner
that will achieve a long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a porlion of its annual operating
activities and increase investment value after inflation. The Medical Center diversifies its
investments among various asset classes incorporating muitiple strategies and external investment
managers, including the University of Chicago Investment Office. Major investment decisions for
Investments held in TRIP and managed by the Universily are authorized by the University Board of
Trustee's Investment Committee, which oversees the University's investment program in
accordance with established guidelines.

Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and fixed-Income investments, with
maturities of less than one year, which are valued based on quoted market prices in active
markets. The majority of these investments are held in U.S. money market accounts. Global public
equity investments consist of separate accounts, commingled funds with liquidity ranging from daily
to monthly, and limited partnerships. Securities held in separate accounts and daily-traded
commingled funds are generally valued based on quoted market prices in active markets.
Commingled funds with monthly liquidity are valued based on independently determined NAV.
Limited partnership interests in equity-oriented funds are valued based upon NAV provided by
external fund managers.

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are in the form of
limited partnership interests, which typically invest in private securities for which there is no readily
determinable market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers
based on a combination of discounted cash flow analysis, industry comparables, and outside
appraisals. Where private equity, real estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded
securities, these securities are generally valued based on market prices. The value of the limited
partnership interests are held at the manager's reported NAV, unless information becomes
available indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment. The methods used by managers to
assess the NAV of these external investments vary by asset class. The University’s Investment
Office on behalf of the Medical Center monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of

managers.

The absolute return portfoiio is compnised of investments of limited partnership interests in hedge
funds and drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authority to invest
in various asset classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. The
majority of the underlying holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying

14
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holdings Is held in marketable securities that trade infrequently or in private investments, which are
valued by the manager on the basis of an appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry
comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds that hold illiquid investments designate
them in special side pockets, which are subject to special restrictions on redemption.

Fixed-income investments consist of directly held actively traded treasuries, separately managed
accounts, commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority of which
have maturities greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active

markets.

Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds, worker's compensation
trust funds, and externally managed endowments,

The Medical Center believes that the reported amount of its investments is a reasonable estimate
of fair value as of June 30, 2013 and 2012. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation,
these astimated fair values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a

ready market existed.
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Quoted Significant
Prices In Other Significant
Active Obsarvable Unobservable 2013
Markets Inputs Inputs Total
{Lave] 1) {Lavel 2) {Level 3) Fair Value
Assets
Invesiments:
Cash Equivalents $ 32,779 1 - 3 - $ 32,779
Global Public Equlties 95,960 50,134 28,953 175,047
Private Debt - - 21,328 21,328
Private Equity
U.S. Venture Capital - - 32,854 32,854
U.S. Comporate Finance - - 32022 32,022
Intemational - - 38,120 38,120
Real Assets
Real Estate - - 56,978 56,978
Natural Resources - - 58,786 58.786
Absolute Retum
Equity Orienled 8,269 6,169 23,617 38,155
Global Macro/Relative Value 8,125 5,740 23,278 35,143
Multi-Sirategy - 2,666 47,791 50,457
Credil-Oriented - - 16,376 16,376
Volatility-Oriented - 11,227 - 11,227
Fixed Income
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS 58,129 46,740 - 104,869
Other Fixed Income 9,892 70,479 - 80,371
Funds in Trust 14,804 - - 14,804
Total investments 224,058 193,155 330,103 797,316
Other assets 3,045 - - 3.045
Total assets at fair value s 227103 % 193155 $ 380,103 § 800,361
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable $ - 3 88769 8 - 88,769
Total liabitities at falr value $ - 3 88,769 $ - 8 88,769
16
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Quoted Significant
Prices In Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable 2012
Markete Inputs Inpuls Total
“{Levei 1) (Level 2} {Level 3} Fair Value
Assets
Investments:
Cash Equivalents $ 15,422 $ - $ - $ 15,422
Global Public Equities 125,953 72,801 36.691 235,445
Private Debt - - 22,848 22,848
Private Equity
U.S. Venture Capltal - - 33,818 33,918
{4.8. Corporate Finance - . 33,186 33,196
Internationa! - - 40,232 40,232
Resl Assels
Real Estate - - 57,206 57,296
Natural Resources - - 59,953 58,953
Absolute Return
Equity Oriented 5,728 5,448 17,808 28,884
Global Macro/Retative Value 5,764 5,538 28,933 40,235
Muilti-Strategy - - 50,350 50,350
Credit-Orisnted - - 11,214 11,214
Volatility-Oriented - 9,975 - 8,976
Fixed tncome
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS 74,878 74,787 - 149,885
Other Fixed Income 81,482 - - 81,482
fFunds In Trust 54,223 - - 54,223
Total investments 383,450 168,548 392,439 924438
Other assels 41,580 - - 41,580
Total assets at fair vaiue $ 405030 § 168,549  § 382438 $ 968.018
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable $ - 8 135872 § - 135,872
Total liabilities at falr value $ - 8 135872 § - 3 135,872

During 2013 there were no transfers between investment Levels 1 and 2. During fiscal year 2013
and 2012, transfers occurred between investment levels 2 and 3 as a result of changes in
observableé market data. Changes to the reported amounts of investments measured at fair value
using unobservable inputs (Levei 3} as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

17
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Separately Investad 2013
Invested fn TRIP Total
Fair value, July 1, 2012 8 6,233 $ 386206 $ 392,439
Realized gains - 33,429 33,429
Unrealized gains (losses) 166 (23,415) (23,249)
Purchases - 29,498 29,498
Sales {1,859) (50,278) (52,137)
Transfers ' - 123 123
Fair value, June 30, 2013 $ 4540 $ 375563 § 380,103
Separately invested - 2012
Investad in TRIP Total
Fair value, July 1, 2011 $ 7510 $ 366077 $ 373587
Realized gains 18 23,569 23,587
Unrealized gains (losses) 297 {3,815) (3,518)
Purchases 80 48,080 48,160
Sales (1,672) (50,008} (51,680)
Transfers - 2,303 2,303
Fair value, June 30, 2012 $ 6233 § 386206 $ 392,439

The interest rate swap arrangement has inputs which can generally be corroborated by market
data and is therefore classified within level 2.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while UCMC believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of UCMC's long-lived

partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry
comparables and outside appraisals. Significant increases (decreases) in any inputs used by

investment managers in determining net asset values in isolation would result in a significantly
lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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UCMC has made investments in various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered
into contractual agreements that may limit its ability to Initlate redemptions due to notice periods,
lockups and gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset class and type of investment are

provided below:

Redemption Redemption
Restrictions Restrictions In Place
R ing Life R ption Terms and terms at June 30, 2012
Cash NIA Daily None None
Global Public Equity:
Separate accounts N/A Daily None None
Commingled funds N/A Daily to monthiy with None None
notice periods of
1to 14 days
Parinerships “[NA Quarterly (0 annually  (Lock-up provisions None
with notice periods ranging from 0 to
of 30 to 180 days 5 years, some
investments have a
portion of capital in
side pockels with no
redemptions
permitted
Private debt 1to 10 years Redemptions not NA NIA
permitted
Private equity 1 1o 18 years Redemptions N/A N/A
not permitied
Real assets 1to 18 years Redemptions N/A N/A
not permitted

Absolute return:

Partnerships NI/A Monthly to annually Lock-up provisions Approximatety
with varying notice ranging from Oto § $46.5 million of
periods investments have a investments

portion of capital in are in gated or
side pockets with no liguidating
redemplions funds
permitted

Orawdown partnerships |1 to 4 years Redemptions NA N/A
not permitted

Fixed income:

Separate accounts N/A Daily None None

Commingled funds N/A Daily None None

Partnerships NIA Quarterly with notice Oniy ong-third capial  |None
periods of 90 days avaliabte in any

12-month period
Funds held in trust N/A Daily None None
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6. Endowments

UCMC's endowment consists of individual donor restricted endowment funds and board-
designated endowment funds for a variety of purposes plus the following where the assets have
been designated for endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreemants, and other net
assets. The endowment includes both donor-restricied endowment funds and funds designated by
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. The net assets assoctated with endowment
funds including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

Ilinois is governed by the *Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA).
The Board of Trustees of UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, UCMC classifies as permanently
restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-
restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by UCMC in
a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

UCMC has the following donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 delineated by net asset class:
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Endowment net assets,
beginning of year

Investment retum:
Investment income
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized)
Total investment return

Gifts and other additions

Appropriation of
endowment assets
for expenditure

Appropriation of
endowment assets
for capital

Other

Endowment net assets,
end of year

Endowment net assets,
beginning of year

Investment retumn:
Investment income
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized)
Total investment retum

Appropriation of
endowment assets
for expenditure

Other

Endowment net assets,
end of year

000078

__Unrestricted
Funds Temporarily  Permanently 2013
Functioning Restricted Restricted Total
$ 796,105 $ 67,279 $ 6,072 $ 869,456
38,437 3,518 - 41,955
21,351 1,086 - 22,437
59,788 4,604 - 84,392
25,000 - 10 25,010
(37,037) (3.610) - (40,647)
(134,707) (134,707)
(1.859) 361 . (1,498)
$ 707,290 3 68,634 6,082 $ 782,006
Unrestricted
Funds Temporarily Permanently 2012
Functioning Restricted Restricted Total
$ 810,184 3 67,857 % 6,072 $ BB4,113
36,192 3,140 - 39,332
(11,335} (305) - {11,640)
24,857 2,835 - 27,692
(37.343) (3.792) (41,135}
(1,593) 379 - " (1,214)
$ 795,105 $ 67279 §$ 6,072 § 869,456
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Description of amounts classified as permanently restricted net assets and temporarily restricted
net assets (Endowments only) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Time- Time-
Restricted Restricted 2013
Perpetual by Donor by Law Total
Restricted for pediatric health care $ 185 § - 8 15,580 § 17,435
Restricted for adylt health care 1,925 - 50,715 52,640
Restricted for educational and
scientific programs 2,312 - 2,338 4,651
$ 6,092 $ - % 68,634 § 74,726
Time- Time-
Restricted Restricted 2012
Perpetual by Donor by Law Total
Restricled for pediatric health care  $ 1835 § - % 15273 § 17,108
Restricted for adult health care 1,825 - 49,751 51,676
Restricted for educational ang
scientific programs 2,312 - 2,255 4 567
$ 6072 § - % 67,279 % 73,351

Investment and Spending Pollcies

UCMC has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain
the purchasing power of endowment assets. UCMC expects its endowment funds over time, to
provide an average rate of return of approximately 6% annually. To achleve its long-term rate of
retumn objectives, UCMC relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized gains) and current yield {interest and
dividends). Actual retums in any given year may vary from this amount.

For endowments invested in TRIP, the Board of Trustees of UCMC has adopted the University's
method to be used to appropriate endowment funds for expenditure, inciuding following the
University's payout formula. The University utifizes the total return concept in allocating
endowment income. [n accordance with the University’s total retum objective, between 4.5% and
5.5% of a 12-quarter moving average of the fair vaius of endowment investments, lagged by one
year, is avallable each year for expenditure in the form of endowment payout. The exact payout
percentage, which is set each year by the Board of Trustees with the objective of a 5% average
payout over time, was 5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. If endowment
income received is not sufficient to support the total retum objective, the balance is provided from
capital gains. if income received is in excess of the objective, the balance is reinvested in the
endowment.

For endowments invested apart from TRIP, UCMC calculates a payout of 4% annually on a rolling

24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected
long term rate of return on its endowment.
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7.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The components of property, plant and equipment as of June 30 are as follows:

2013 2012
Land and land rights ’ $ 36008 5 36,008
Buildings and improvements 1,255,542 649,565
Equipment 576,374 479,832
Construction in progress 74,688 610,211

1,942,612 1,775,616
Less accumulated depreciation (752,989) (709,122)

Totat property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,189,623 § 1,066,494

UCMC's net property, plant and equipment cost Includes $10,600 representing assets under capital
leases with the University, which are stated at the UCMC's historical cost. The cost of bulldings
that are jointly used by the University and UCMC Is allocated based on the lease provisions. In
addition, land and land nights includes $19,200, which represents the unamortized portion of initial
lease payments made to the University. UYCMC entered into a services agreement in 2013 for the
exclusive right to operate certain food service operations at the Medical Center, which includes a
capital commitment in the amount of $11,800 for equipment and renovations provided by the
contractor. The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2013 was $11,300.

The Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service in 2013; approximately $134,800 was
spent in 2013 related to the building. In 2013 and 2012, approximately $0 and $16,800 were
capltalized related to software implementation of an electronic medical records system.

Capitalized interest costs in 2013 and 2012 were $14,600 and $10,000, respectively.
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8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30 consists of the following:

Final fiscal
year maturity interest rate 2013 2012
Fixed rate: )
llinois Heaith Facilities Authority:
Serles 2003 2015 5.0 $ 14,530 $ 21,235
llinols Finance Authority: .
Serles 2008A and B 2027 4.8 150,840 152,350
Series 2009C 2037 5.4 85,000 85,000
Series 2009D-1 and 2 (synthalically fixed rate) 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Serles 2009E-1 and 2 (synthetically fixed rate) 2044 3.8 70,000 70,000
Series 2010 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 3.9 92,500 92,500
Senes 2011 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 36 62,500 62,500
Series 2011C 2042 55 $0,000 80,000
Series 2012A 2037 45 72,080 75,155
Unamortized premium 11,183 12,528
Total fixed rate 748,613 761,268
Variable rate: )
Series 2013A . 2020 1.0 686 -
illinois Educational Faciiities Authority {IEFA) 2038 0.2 81,427 83,277
Total wariable rate 82,113 83,277
Total notes and bonds payabla 830,726 844,545
Less currant portion of long-term debt (10,385) (11,280)
Long-term portion of debt 5 820,341 $ 833,255

The fair value of long-term debt is based on the pricing of fixed-rate bonds of market participants,
including assumptions about the present value of current market interest rates, and loans of
comparable quality and matunty. The fair value of long-term debt would be a Level 2 hierarchy.
The carrying value of long-term debt is below the estimated fair value of the debt by $10,729 and
$34,439 as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, respectively, based on the quoted market prices
for the same or similar issues.

Scheduled annual repayments for the next five years are as follows at June 30:

Year Amount

2014 $ 10,385

2015 10,050

2016 12,778

2017 13,255

2018 13,868
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Under its various indebtedness agreements, the Medical Center is subject to certain financial
covenants, including maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio, maintaining minimum
levels of days cash on hand, maintaining debt ta capitalization at certaln levels; limitations on
selling, leasing, or otherwise disposing of Medical Center property; and certain other nonfinancial
covenants. Each of the bond serles Is collateralized by unrestricted receivables under a Master
Trust Indenture and subject to certain restrictions. The Medical Center was in compliance with its
debt covenants as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Recent Financing Activity

In January 2013, the Medical Center entered into an issuance of a tax-exempt direct purchase loan
with a financial institution, issued as $75,000 of Series 2013A bonds, allocated to the Medical
Center for the purpose of constructing a new parking garage. This bond functions similar to a
construction loan with principal being drawn down as construction proceeds. Interest at LIBOR
plus 60 basis points is payable each month based on the outstanding principal balance. A
mandatory purchase date of repayment is established for January 24, 2020.

Letters of Credit

Payment on each of the variable rate demand revenue bonds is also collateralized by a letter of
credit. The letters of credit that support the Series 20090 and the Series 2009E bonds were due to
expire in August 2012. The Medical Center replaced the letter of credit that supports the Series
2009D bonds with a new letter of credit in June 2012, which expires in June 2017. The letter of
credit that supports the 2009E bonds was extended subsequent to June 30, 2012 and now expires
in December 2014. The letters of credit that support the Series 2010A and Series 20108 bonds
expire in November 2015 and the letters of credit that support the Series 2011A and Series 20118
bonds expire in May 2016. The letters of credit are subject to certain restrictions, which include
financial ratio requirements and consent to future indebtedness. The most restrictive financlal ratio
is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25:1. UCMC was in compifance with all applicable
debt covenants at June 30, 2013.

Payment on each of the |JEFA bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing November 2014.
The letter of credit is subject to certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The
most restrictive financial ratio is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.75:1. UCMC was in
compliance with all applicable debt covenants at June 30, 2013.

included in UCMC's debt is $81,427 of commercial paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variabie
rate demand bonds, In the event that UCMC's remarketing agents are unable to remarket the
bonds, the trustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments
under the letters of credit are between 1 and 3 years, beginning after a grace period of at least one
year, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the original bond issue. Any
bonds tendered are still eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently remarketed would be
subject to the original bond repayment s¢hedules.

UCMC paid interest, net of capitafized interest, of approximately $18,300 and $13,000 in 2013 and
2012, respectively.

UCMC has a $15,000 line of credit from a commercial bank. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, no
amount was outstanding under this line.
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10.

Commitments

Leases
UCMC has capital and noncancelable operating leases for certain bulldings and equipment. Future
minimum payments required under noncancelable operating and capital leases as of June 30 are

as follows:

Operating Capital
2014 3 2,232 3 303
2015 2,074 172
2016 2,102 -
2017 548 -
2018 and thereafter 6,808 -
Total minimum lease payments $ 13,764 475
Less - Amount representing interest 11
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 3 464

The amount of total assets capitalized under these leases at June 30, 2013 and 2012, is $3,000
and $3,200 with related accumulated depreciation of $2,400 and $2,100, respectively. Rental
expense was approximately $5,500 and $4,700 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, including a $500 annual rental of a parking garage from the University.

Insurance

UCMC is included under certain of the University's insurance programs. Since 1977, UCMC, in
conjunction with the University, has maintained a self-insurance program for its medical
malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with commercial excess insurance above the
University's self-insurance retention, which for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was
$7.500 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims in excess of $7,500 are subject to an
additional self-Insurance retention fimited to $12,500 per claim and $12,500 in aggregate.

The estimated liability for medical malpractice self-insurance is actuarially determined based upon
estimated claim reserves and various assumptions, and represents the estimated present value of
seif-insurance claims that will be settled in the future. It considers anticipated payout patterns as
well as interest to be earned on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value
the self-insurance liability is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated
payments. These inputs to the falr value estimate of the liability are considered Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy. :

A comparison of the estimated liability for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and net
agsets for the combined University and UCMC self-insurance program as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, is presented below:

2013 2012
Actuarial present value of self-insurance liabllity
for medical malpractice 3 254328 $ 246,700
Total assets avalilable for claims $ 352,414 % 330,431
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11.

If the present-value method were not used, the ultimate liability for medical malpractice self-
Insurance claims would be approximately $47,200 higher at June 30, 2013. The interest rate
assumed in determining the present value was 4.5% for 2013 and 3.75% for 2012. The Medical
Center has recorded its pro-rata share of the malpractice seff-insurance liabllity as required under
ASU 2010-24 in the amount of $121,300 at June 30, 2013 and $118,153 at June 30, 2012 with an
offsetting receivable from the malpractice tryst to cover any related claims.

The malpractice self-insurance trust assets consist primarily of funds held in TRIP,

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotlated pro-rata share of the actuarially
determined normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over six years, with no retroactive
adjustments, as provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2014, the Medical Center
expense will be $15,300 related to malpractice.

UCMC designated $14,800 and $12,400 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as a workers'
compensation self-insurance reserve trust fund. The self-insurance program investments consist
of 65% bonds and 35% marketable equities. The specifically identified claim requirements and
actuarially determined reserve requirements for unreported workers' compensation claims were
$9,500 and $8,200 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The University also charges
UCMC for its portion of other commercial insurance and self-insurance costs.

Pension Plans

Active Plans

A majority of UCMC's personnel participate in the Unliversity's defined benefit and contribution
pension plan. Under the defined benefit portion of this ptan, benefits are based on years of service
and the employee’s compensation for the five highest paid consecutive years within the last ten
years of employment. UCMC and the University make annual contributions to this portion of the
plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding on an actuarially recommended basis. UCMC
recognizes its share of net periodic pension cost as expense and any difference in the contribution
amount as a transfer of unrestricted net assets. The reduction to net assets for 2013 was $2,800.
Contributions of $32,500 and 352,700 were made in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. UCMC expects to make contributions of $32,500 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014 that will be entirely expensed as net periodic pension costs.

Under the defined contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan participants make contributions
that accrue to the benefit of the participants at retirement. UCMC’s contributions, which are based
on a percentage of each covered employee's salary, totaled approximately $6,400 and $6,100 for
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Plan Name EIN Contributions of UCMC

. 2013 2012
Unhversity of Chicago Retirement Income Plan for Employees  36-2177139-002 $ 6,711 $ 35,000
University of Chicage Pension Plan for Staff Employees 36-2177139-003 25,789 17,700

$ 32500 § 52700

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status for the University's defined
benefit plan inciuded in the University’s financial statements as of June 30, are shown below:
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2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 795,133 § 780,797
Fair value of plan assets 557,968 496,857
Deficit of plan assets ower benefit obligation $ (237,167) $  (284,140)

The weighted-average assumptions used in the accounting for the plan are shown below:

2013 2012
Discount rate 4.9% 4.5%
Expected return on plan assets 7.0% 7.1%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5% < 35%
The weighted average asset allocation for the'plan Is as follows:

2013 2012
Domestic equities 29 % 27 %
International equity 15 % 16 %
Fixed income 56 % 57 %

100 % 100 %

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers anticipated payout patterns as
well as investment retums on available assets prior {0 payment. The discount rate used to value
the pension and other postretirement benefit obligation is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with
the duration of anticipated payments, These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level

2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Total benefits and plan expenses paid by the plan were $36,200 and $32,200 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Expected future benefit payments excluding plan expenses are as follows:

Fiscal Year

2014 42,109
2015 37,761
2016 N 40,072
2017 42,672
2018 45,160
2019-2023 ) 265,818

Certain UCMC personne! participate in a contributory pension plan. Under this plan, UCMC and
plan participants make annual contributions to purchase annuities equivalent to retirement benefits
earned. UCMC'’s pension expense for this plan was $4,900 and $5,000 for the years ended

June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Curtalled and Frozen Plan

In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louls A. Weiss Memorial Hospital Pension Plan
(Employer Identification Number 36-3488183, Plan Number 003), which covers employees of a
former affifiate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen. All beneft accruals are fully vested.

Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets
include the following:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Net periodic pension cost
Interest cost $ 2340 % 2,719
Expected retum on plan assets (2,860) (2,921)
Amortization of unrecognized
net actuanal loss 817 684
Netl periodic pension cost ' 297 ) 482
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in unrestricted net assets
Liability for pension benefits 3,878 (2,659)
Total recognized in net periodic pension cost and '
unrestricted net assets $ (3,581) $ 3,141

The following tables set forth additional required pension disclosure information for this plan:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 58,098 § 55,219
Interest cost 2,340 2,719
Net actuarial loss (gain) {3,029) 3,425
Benefits paid {3,319) (3,264)
54,080 58,099
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 47,696 41,717
Actual retum on plan assets 2,892 3,003
Employer contiibution 1,091 6,240
Bensfits paid (3,318) (3,264)
48,360 47,696
Funded status at end of year 3 (5,730) $ (10,403)

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet are included in noncurrent liabilities.

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for
the net periodic pension cost were as follows:
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2013 2012
Discount rate 48 % 42%
Expected retum on plan assets _ 6.0 % 6.0%
Rate of compensation Increase NA NA
Weighted average asset allocations for plan assels are as follows:

2013 2012
Cash ' 2% 8%
Fixed income 51 53
Demestic equities 34 28
International equities 13 11

100 % 100 %

All plan assets are valued using level 1 inputs. The target asset allocation Is 40% equities and
60% fixed income. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical investment returns

for simifar investment portfolios.

UCMC expects to make contributions of $1,500 to the plan in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Expected future benefit payments are: .
Fiscal Year

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023

12. Acquisitions

3.565
3,547
3,535
3,535
3,559
18,206

On September 30, 2011, the Medical Center entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement, whereby
the Medical Center acquired the operations of Midwest Center for Hematology/Oncology, S.C. a
professional service corporation that specializes in oncology. The purchase price was $2,607 and
there are no earn-out provisions with the agreements. The acquisition is accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the cost has been allocated on the basls of
estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. This resulted in $746 of the
purchase price being allocated to goodwill and $905 being allocated to non-compele agreements.

The non-compete agreements are amortized over a 5 year period.

13. Concentration of Credit Risk

As a hospital, UCMC is potentially subject to concentration of credit risk from patient accounts
receivable and certain investments. Investments, which include government and agency
securities, stocks, corporate bonds, real assets, absolute return, and private equities, are not
concentrated in any corporation or industry or with any single counter-party. UCMC receives a
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significant portion of its payments for services rendered from a limited number of government and
commercial third-party payors, including Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross. For 2013 and 2012,
Medlcaid approximated 15% and 17% of the Medical Center's net revenue for the year. Medicaid
represented 16% and 30% of UCMC's net accounts receivable at June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Management does not anticipate any collection risk related to the Medicaid accounts
receivable at June 30, 2013. UCMC has not historically incurred any significant credit losses
outside the normal course of business.

14. Pledges

Pledges receivable at June 30 are shown below:

2013 2012

Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:

Less than one year $ 2272  $ 4,959

One year to five years 2,834 6,001

More than five years - -

4,908 10,960
Less unamortized discount (discount rate 5.5%) {197) (527)
Total $ 4709 §$ 10,433

15. Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes as of June 30:

2013 2012
Pediatric health care $ 17843 $ 17,751
Adult health care 51,756 50,743
Educational and scientific programs 4,691 4,187
Capital and other purposes 7,581 22,664
Total $ 81,971 % 95,345

Income from permanently restricted net assets is restricted for:

. 2013 2012
Pediatric health care $ 1855 % 1.845
Aduit health care 1,925 1,935
Educational and scientific programs 2,312 2,312
Total $ 6,092 % 6,092
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16. Functional Expenses

Total operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended June 30:

2013 2012
Health care senices $ 1177672 $ 1,103,904
General and administrative 80,938 66,819
Total $ 1,258610 3 1,170,723

17. Contingencies

UCMC is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have risen in the normal course of
business. In addition, UCMC is subject to reviews by various federal and state government
agencies to assure compliance with applicable laws, some of which are subject to different
interpretations. While the outcome of these suits cannot be determined at this time, management,
based on advice from legal counsel, believes that any loss which may arise from these actions will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of UCMC.
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Section 1130.520, Information Requirements for Change of Ownership of a Health Care
Facility )

1. Affirmations: In accordance with 77 lll. Adm. Code §1130.520, the Applicants affirm
the following:

a. The transaction documents contain a provision that execution is subject to the
‘Review Board’s approval.

b. No adverse action has been taken against any of the Applicants by the federal
government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of
Illinois against any health care facility owned or operated by any of the
Applicants, directly or indirectly, within the past three years.

c. Any Ingalls Hospital projects for which permits have been issued by the Review
Board have been completed or will be completed or altered in accordance with the
provisions of 77 Ill. Adm. Code §1130.520. Ingalls Hospital has no permits from
the Review Board which have not been completed.

d. The Applicants affirm that Ingalls Hospital will not adopt a more restrictive
charity care policy than the policy in effect one year prior to the transaction.

e. The Applicanté understand that failure to complete the Affiliation in accordance
with the applicable provisions of Section 1130.500(d) no later than 24 months
from the date of exemption approval and failure to comply with the material

change requirements of this Section will invalidate the exemption.

2. Statement as to the anticipated benefits of the proposed changes in ownership to the

community.

The proposed transaction will create an integrated health care system focused on access,
quality and service between two South Side organizations with complementary strengths
— UCMC has expertise in complex care and research and Ingalls has expertise in high-
quality care in the community hospital setting.

Through a strong combined network of physicians and facilities, the proposed transaction
will promote greater access for patients across a continuum of health care, improve
coordination and spur clinical innovation. UCMC and IHS will maximize the benefits of
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their combined scope and scale to jointly provide the highest quality of care to patients, to
more effectively coordinate care, to manage population health in their communities and
to improve health outcomes.

3. Statement as to the anticipated or potential cost savings, if any, that will result for
the community and the facility as a result of the change in ownership.

The proposed transaction between UCMC and IHS will improve the value of health care
in both service areas through economies of scale and corresponding financial savings,
and by enabling the parties to more effectively implement new payment models, such as
risk contracting and bundled payments.

Ingalls and UCMC’s diverse set of assets, including a strong acute care base
complemented by an extensive ambulatory care platform, a geographic spread of
healthcare providers, strong interoperable information technology with extensive data
acquisition and predictive modeling capabilities, and robust quality and safety programs,
will help to facilitate their delivery of integrated health care and to achieve a lower cost
platform.

The parties intend that the combined health system will maintain a strong financial
operational model to generate the capital required to reinvest in infrastructure, programs
and services in furtherance of the respective clinical missions. Additionally, the
operational efficiency will be driven by LEAN management principles employed in each
organization.

4. Description of the facility's quality improvement program mechanism that will be
utilized to assure quality control.

UCMC and IHS share a longstanding commitment to a culture of quality, patient safety
and service. By aspiring to the highest standards for quality and patient satisfaction,
UCMC and IHS continue to advance the commitment to delivering care that is of the
highest quality, is evidence based, and eliminates preventable harm.

It is anticipated that IHS will integrate its quality and safety plans with UCMC’s quality
and safety plans after the closing of the proposed transaction. UCMC’s quality and
safety plans are designed to align leadership, staff and resources to accomplish defined
quality improvement and patient safety goals. UCMC’s plans are supported and
sustained through a robust data analytics program in order to measure internal
performance and to benchmark against national peers. Annual goals are set to maintain
UCMC’s status as a national leader in quality, safety and experience. The goals consider
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key components of the national quality agendas, value and input from stakeholders both
internal and external to the system including patients and their family members.

S. Description of the applicants' organizational structure, including a listing ofv

controlling or subsidiary persons.

Diagrams illustrating the ownership structure of UCMC, IHS and Ingalls Hospital, both
current and post-transaction, are provided in Attachment 3.

6. Description of the selection process that the acquiring entity will use to select the
facility's governing body.

UCMC will become the sole corporate member of IHS.

As part of the Affiliation, UCMC will designate four (4) additional seats on its Board of
Trustees to be appointed by THS (“Ingalls Trustees”). The current Chief Executive
Officer of IHS will be one of the Ingalls Trustees, ex officio, and the current IHS Board
of Directors will designate the other three Ingalls Trustees.

The Ingalls Trustees will serve for at least one initial three (3) year term, subject to
further reorganization of UCMC’s Board of Trustees. After the Ingalls Trustees’ initial
term expires, UCMC’s Board of Directors will appoint the Ingalls Trustees from a slate
nominated by its Community Health and Hospital Division.

Additionally, each of UCMC’s Strategic Planning, Finance and Clinical Quality and
Safety Committees will be increased by one member each and members of the Ingalls
Trustees or other Ingalls representatives will be included on these committees.

7. Statement that the applicants have prepared a written response addressing the
review criteria contained in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1110.240 and that the response is
available for public review on the premises of the health care facility.

The Applicants have or will prepare a written response addressing the review criteria
contained in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1110.240 that will be available for public review at

Ingalls Hospital.

8. Description or summary of any proposed changes to the scope of services or levels of
care currently provided at the facility that are anticipated to occur within twenty-
four (24) months after acquisition.
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There are no proposed changes to the scope of services or levels of care currently
provided at the facility that are anticipated to occur within twenty-four (24) months after
the transaction.
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